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CORPORATE PROFILE 2B

Linmark Group Limited, listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 2002, is a fast growing
one-stop global sourcing and supply chain management solutions
provider. With a presence in 28 cities in 19 countries and
territories, the Group offers comprehensive and efficient sourcing
solutions to its customers, the majority of whom are leading retail
chain operators, well-known brands, wholesalers, mail order houses
and department stores in North America, Europe, Asia and Africa.
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Contributions from new customers including Warnaco, Petedge
and Kellwood

Rapid expansion of value-added services

Ongoing review on operations allowing substantial cost savings

Short term: organic growth, new customers and value-added
services

Medium and long term: new customers, M&A (mergers and
acquisitions), expanded value-added services, product
diversification and China market growth

M&A

Continuous development of the L.0.G.0.N. system (US$0.9
million invested in FY2003 and approximately US$1 million
per annum in future years)

Continuous expansion of sourcing network (less than
US$0.5 million to be invested per annum in future years)

China’s entry into the WTO and elimination of apparel quotas
Integration of M&A companies

Continuous addition of new value-added services
Strengthening of middle management team to groom
candidates as part of succession planning

Operates a “total transparency” policy where customers know
exactly where, at what cost and progress of the goods being made
Maintains an inventory-free model, therefore, no inventory risk
No net debt

Generally, close to 50% turnover from each of the 1st half and
2nd half of a financial year

Target is to distribute approximately 30% to 40% of after tax
profit per annum. The Group’s aim is to strike the right balance
between retaining profit for future growth and rewarding
shareholders

FHFHEF Warnaco
Kellwood Y = &
BERBNARIGR
SERNEE  FERERE

- Petedge &

B R R - #iE F AR IR ERES

THIRRE CHEF - AW - ERE
ER® > EmZTRHPETSENER

A ptiE

BEBRL.O0.G.ON RE (ZBZ=FH
BEERETATBER  BAEREF
EREN—BEET)

THREARBASZ ARSREFERE
PRAE+TEET)

FREI DA T B R BUE AR 2 e AR
HHIBRRNES

R R 70 R T A IR B AR S

P RERBURESEEREIA

UISZHRE INHEEF  TFEEE2E
BX - BREEmATEL  EERREERE
DEFEEALE - FIREESENER
EEAE

—MREE  REBEPRFENERE - £
FERTHFEZMHEN50%

ERREFEREN 30% E 40% HEH
@R - KENEBRERBEAER %
SR 2 AR ARES R THE R MER
BPE



EEEEEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEEN EEEEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEEN EEEEEEEEEEE
- EEmam | EEN EEEEEEREEE
What we did sl -
last year... mam s
B N [ ] | ||
BE—F &M - .
| | ] | [ ]
u
u
[ | 1 |
u
u
u
]
u
u
EEEE [ 1]
EEEE NN EE =
EEEEE
We coordinated the shipment of lll=
approximately 110,000,000 S
pieces of apparel on behalf of our =....... ==
customers in FY2003 = ===lll
: | N EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
We shipped over 6,200 containers e
of apparel EEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEEEEEEEEN
R-ZT=FPREE  ARFR T e
B @4 110,000,000 £ERR S EE .EI'
HEEIA 6,200 A BB AREE EEEEEE
EEEEE
EEEE
1]
1]
EEE
1
1]
u
We placed orders in 1,100 LINMARK GROUP #Z&EH

factories located in Asia, Africa,
Europe and Central America
We oversaw the production of
15,000,000 pairs of footwear
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What we are...
HAE -

We oversee production in 31
countries and territories

We place orders in a factory
network which has a workforce of
over 500,000 employees
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We have a team who speaks 35
different languages and dialects
We are driven by a senior
management team with members
of 17 different nationalities
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2003 2002
—EE=F —FTE- Increase/
US$’million US$’million (Decrease)
BEETT BH&EZETT # 7GRl
OPERATING RESULTS &K&X4E
Turnover L 44.3 29.6 49.7%
EBITDA BRFE - FIE - TEK
R m A 13.5 9.1 48.4%
Profit from operations A A 12.7 8.6 47.7%
% of net profit to
shipment volume HAMETEZLEE (%) 2.0% 1.7% 17.6%
Profit for the year FERA 12.3 8.3 48.2%
FINANCIAL POSITION EifgiRkin
Total assets BERE 50.5 13.6 271.3%
Cash reserves e HEHE 37.9 2.1 1,704.8%
Shareholders’ fund fRERE 2 45.7 10.0 357.0%
FINANCIAL RATIO B FSEE =R
Current ratio (Times) MENLE =R (£3) 12.0 3.7 224.3%
Gearing ratio (%) BRBELE(%) Less than 214 0.1% 0.5% (80.0%)
OTHERS Hith
Interim dividend
(HK cents) fREARR B BAL) 2.4 = N/A i A
Final dividend
(HK cents) REFRZ B OBAL) 3.5 3.0 16.7%
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| am pleased to present the results of Linmark Group Limited
(“Linmark™) for the financial year ended 30 April 2003.

| take great pleasure in announcing that we have achieved
remarkably strong results for the year under review with improved
performance in all the markets in which we operate. Our results
are particularly encouraging in view of the generally weak
business environment that prevailed. We not only broke new
records in our shipment volume, but also attained higher
turnover and profit. This encouraging progress is testimony to
the efforts we have made over the years, and demonstrates the
burgeoning potential of our business.

In addition to these pleasing results, we also accomplished
many other corporate goals. By pursuing a strategy of market
diversification, the US, the most important consumer market
in the world, became our largest as well as our fastest growing
market. Our value-added service business has grown rapidly
during the year under review, forming a major catalyst for our
top and bottom line expansion in coming years. In April and
May 2003, we also signed up two important new customers,
taking us beyond our existing markets to cover South Africa
and deepen our penetration in Europe, where market
opportunities abound.

As a service-oriented company, we continue to invest in human
capital. Our senior management team was further enhanced
during the year under review, and we also strengthened our
operation team as well as our hardgoods and I.T. divisions.
These initiatives place Linmark in a more powerful position to
seize future opportunities. We also introduced a third
independent non-executive director, Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden
to our board of directors, reflecting our commitment to institute
a high level of corporate governance and culture.
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Looking ahead, Linmark is committed to taking our business
forward. Organic growth with the acquisition of new customers
remains a key strategy. At the same time, we will also pursue
growth by mergers and acquisitions with a prime focus on
maximising the value of our business. The introduction of more
value-added services, instrumental in promoting both top and
bottom line growth, will be a further spotlight for the financial
year ending 30 April 2004.

Finally, | would like to thank our management and staff for
their committed efforts, and our shareholders for their continual
support throughout the year.

WANG Lu Yen E3%FE
Chairman /&

Hong Kong, 23 July 2003
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Business Review

Overview

During the year ended 30 April 2003, the global economy
continued to be volatile with weak consumer sentiment due to
instability in the Middle East after the US-led war on Iraq and
outbreak of SARS.

Despite these conditions, the Group delivered robust growth in
both our turnover and net profit after tax attributable to
shareholders. For the year ended 30 April 2003, the Group
recorded shipment volume of approximately US$633.2 million
(equivalent to HK$4,939.0 million), representing an increase
of approximately 29.4% as compared to last year. Turnover,
comprised commission income, sales of merchandise and
service income, was recorded at approximately US$44.3 million
(equivalent to HK$345.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 49.7% as compared to last year. Net profit after
tax attributable to shareholders for the year under review was
approximately US$12.3 million (equivalent to HK$95.9
million), an increase of approximately 48.2% when compared
to last year. Net margin as a percentage of shipment volume
improved by approximately 17.6% from 1.7% to 2.0% during
the year under review due to prudent cost measures, improved
operating efficiencies, the increase in shipment volume and
contribution from higher margin value-added services for
customers. Thanks to our global network and timely
implementation of various contingency measures, the outbreak
of SARS in the region did not cause any major

disruptions to our operations during the
year under review. '
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Market Overview
During the year under review, the Group enjoyed several
successes in its strategy of market diversification.

US Market

During the year under review, the US market accounted for
approximately 38.8% of the Group’s turnover, making it the
Group’s fastest growing and largest market. Turnover attributable
to the US market amounted to approximately US$17.2 million
(equivalent to HK$134.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 105.1% over that of last year. The Group
successfully integrated the Warnaco business as evidenced by
the robust growth of this account during the year under review.
Although the consumer sentiment remained cautious, the
directors are confident that the outlook remains good as they
believe that the trend for outsourcing will continue. Meanwhile,
the Group will continue its efforts to generate new business
through broader services and deeper market coverage.

Canadian Market

As a result of the Group’s successful offering of value-added
services to provide our customers with total supply chain
management solutions, the Group’s turnover attributable to the
Canadian market increased by approximately 31.7% from
approximately US$11.1 million (equivalent to HK$86.6 million)
in last year to approximately US$14.6 million (equivalent to
HK$113.9 million) for the year under review. The growth was
mainly attributable to the Group’s value-added services, such as
private label development and packaging and trim services.

The Canadian Government granted duty free and quota free status
to many Least Developed Countries (LDC), including Bangladesh,
during the year under review. As a result, the Group has shifted
a portion of its sourcing base from other Asian countries to
Bangladesh, thus increasing the share of sourcing generated from
Bangladesh to Canada.
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As the Canadian market has been affected by economic
downturn, consumer confidence and purchasing power in
Canada remains weak. As a result, the Group expects its first
quarter results for the year ending 30 April 2004 will be affected
but remains cautiously optimistic that any adverse impact will
not continue due to the fast recovery expected after the removal
of Canada from the list of SARS-affected areas.

European Market

During the year under review, the Group recorded turnover to
the European market of approximately US$2.8 million
(equivalent to HK$21.8 million), representing an increase of
approximately 33.3% over that of the last year. Notwithstanding
the increase in turnover attributable to the European market,
the management’s strategy is to aggressively expand the Group’s
penetration in such market in the coming years. In May 2003,
the Group signed up Dr. Rehfeld Holding AG of Germany, one
of the top 100 clothing suppliers in Europe, as a new customer.
The management is confident that the Group will continue to
see business growth in view of its commitment to expand the
sales network and customer base in Europe.

Hong Kong and Other Markets

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover to Hong
Kong and other markets was approximately US$9.7 million
(equivalent to HK$75.7 million), representing an increase of
approximately 20.1% over that of the last year. The signing on
of a new customer Edgars Consolidated Stores Limited (Edcon),
a leading retail conglomerate in South Africa, in April 2003
further demonstrates the success of the Group’s customer
acquisition campaign, contributing to our strategy of market
diversification to further reduce the Group’s reliance on the
North American market.
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Hardgoods Development
During the year under review, the Group’s turnover in hardgoods

contributed approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to
HK$41.3 million), representing a modest increase of
approximately 1.2% as compared to last year. To strengthen its
execution and offerings, the Group recruited a new business
director in charge of hardgoods in April 2003 to aggressively
grow this business. In addition to expanding our customer base
in North America, the Group anticipates expansion opportunities
in the European and other markets in the near future.

L.0.G.O.N. System

During the year under review, the Group successfully linked
the L.0.G.0.N. system to some of its key customers and vendors.
The Group expects to have a fully-connected system among its
key customers, vendors and the Group by the end of fiscal year
2004.

In addition to RFQ (Request For Quotation) and E-Office Human
Resources Intranet, the Group further expanded the
functionalities of L.0.G.0.N. system to include E-Approval and
E-Fixed Asset modules and expects to complete the modules
on E-Auction facility, E-Accounts Receivable and E-General
Ledger within the next two years, allowing the Group to have a
comprehensive web-based Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system to realize the full benefits and synergies of an advanced
technological platform.

To augment its |.T. planning and execution capabilities, the
Group recruited a new business director in charge of I.T. in
May 2003. The Group will continue to invest in the
enhancement of its L.0.G.0.N. system to further reinforce the
connectivity and integration with its customers and vendors as
part of our global supply chain management solutions.
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Value-added Services

During the year under review, the Group’s value-added services
showed a promising start, generating a turnover of approximately
US$10.9 million (equivalent to HK$85.0 million). In addition
to the Group’s existing value-added services, including product
development for private label business and design services,
packaging and trim services, quality assurance and social
compliance auditing services, the Group will further expand its
offerings to existing and new customers. The management
expects contributions from the Group’s value-added services
will continue to grow strongly in the coming years.

China Expansion

With China’s growing importance as a strategic sourcing hub
after its accession to the WTO, the Group has expanded its
office network in China to include Shenzhen, Shanghai, Fuzhou,
and Tianjin. The Group was a co-sponsor together with the China
Commerce Association for General Merchandise (CCAGM) of
the first and largest China Department Store Summit held in
Beijing in March 2003 with very encouraging results. The
management believes that the successful retail summit and its
affiliation with the Group’s parent company has helped the Group
establish its credibility, providing a platform to introduce the
Group’s supply chain management solutions to potential
department stores and retail groups in China which are looking
for ways to improve their competitiveness and profitability in
light of China’s entry into the WTO.

Financial Review

The Group’s financial position is strong with deposits and cash
balances of approximately US$37.9 million (equivalent to
HK$295.6 million) as at 30 April 2003. In addition, the Group
has banking facilities of approximately US$1.0 million
(equivalent to HK$7.8 million) which have not been utilised.
The Group has continued to operate under a debt-free model
with no outstanding net debt as at 30 April 2003 except a hire
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Committed to
to supply chain management solutions

purchase loan for a motor vehicle at a net book value of
approximately US$47,000 (equivalent to HK$367,000).

The Group has a strong current ratio of 12.0 and a negligible
gearing ratio of less than 0.1%, based on interest bearing
borrowings of approximately US$28,000 (equivalent to
HK$218,000) to shareholders’ equity of approximately
US$45.7 million (equivalent to HK$356.5 million), as at 30
April 2003. During the year under review, the Group’s capital
comprised solely of shareholders’ equity. There has not been
any material change in the Group’s borrowings since 30 April
2003.

The Group’s net asset value as at 30 April 2003 was
approximately US$45.7 million (equivalent to HK$356.5
million).

As at 30 April 2003, the Group had no material contingent
liability and there has been no material change since then.

The majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Since the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to US dollar, the management believes that exchange
risk is not significant at this time.

Human Resources

For the year under review, the Group has strengthened its senior
management team with the hiring of a new corporate director,
a former executive vice president in charge of operations at
Colby International Limited, a sourcing company acquired by
Li & Fung in 2000. The corporate director is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group to raise operational
efficiencies and promote customer-oriented culture. The two
new business directors recruited separately for hardgoods and
[.T. report to the corporate director. The Group will continue to
invest in human capital to drive its business moving forward.
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Seizing to grow

Remuneration Policy and Staff Development
Scheme

As at 30 April 2003, the Group had 709 employees. The total
staff costs for the year under review amounted to approximately
US$16.9 million (equivalent to HK$131.8 million) (2002:
US$12.8 million (equivalent to HK$99.8 million)).

The Group offers competitive remuneration schemes to its
employees based on industry practices, individual and the
Group’s performance. In addition, share options and
discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based
on both the Group’s as well as individual performance. It also
offers fringe benefits such as professional tuition and training
subsidies to staff to enhance their sense of loyalty and as part
of the Group’s emphasis on staff training and development.

Prospects

The Group is concerned with the further weakening of an already
slow global economy due to the yet to be determined effects of
the Iraqgi war and a possible re-occurrence of SARS. While the
effects of SARS on the results of the Group were limited in the
year under review, the management will monitor closely any
possible impact in the upcoming periods. The management
remains cautiously optimistic given the continuation of a global
outsourcing trend. In the wake of the recent SARS episode,
brand owners and retailers continue to seek partnerships with
sourcing agents offering competitive and value-added solutions
in the management of their global supply chains. The
management also expects the new customers will make
important contributions to the Group. Riding on the increasing
trend of outsourcing, the management is confident in taking
business further in the year ending 30 April 2004.

Besides the addition of an office in Cambodia, the sourcing

network of the Group was further strengthened by doubling the
size of the offices in Bangladesh and Shanghai in China.
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Meanwhile, with deposits and cash balances of approximately
US$37.9 million (equivalent to HK$295.6 million), the Group
is actively seeking strategic merger and acquisition
opportunities.

Use of Proceeds of the Initial Public Offering

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
on 10 May 2002. Through the issue of 148.2 million new shares
at HK$1.68 each, the Group raised approximately US$31.9
million (equivalent to HK$248.8 million). After deduction of
listing related expenses, net proceeds were approximately
US$27.8 million (equivalent to HK$216.8 million).

As at 30 April 2003, a total of approximately US$1.5 million
(equivalent to HK$11.7 million) of the net proceeds had been
used for I.T. investment (L.0.G.0.N. system), and setting up of
sourcing offices in China. The remaining net proceeds of
approximately US$26.3 million (equivalent to HK$205.1
million) will be used as planned to further expand the sourcing
network, enhancement of L.0.G.0.N. system, marketing and
business development together with mergers and acquisitions.
While the Group continues to look for synergistic merger and
acquisition targets, a substantial part of the cash in hand has
been placed into deposits.

Steven Julien FENIGER & &4
Chief Executive Officer 7TIE(#2%

Hong Kong, 23 July 2003
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Executive directors

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 49, is the chairman of the Company
and presently responsible for the Group’s corporate and
strategic planning. Mr. Wang has also been the chairman of
Roly International Holdings Ltd. (“Roly International™) since
2000. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1998. Mr. Wang has
over 20 years of experience in the trading and distribution
business. Mr. Wang was awarded Outstanding Businessman
by Taiwan’s Ministry of Economic Affairs in 1985 and was
formerly the chairman of Taiwan Business Association (Hong
Kong) Limited (formerly known as Taiwan Businessmen’s
Association (Hong Kong) Limited). Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from Soochow University,
Taiwan.

Mr. Steven Julien FENIGER, aged 44, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director of the Company. Mr. Feniger has
substantial experience in the apparel industry. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Feniger headed the Asia and global
sourcing division of the US-listed apparel group, Warnaco
Group, an apparel manufacturer based in the US. Mr. Feniger
also served in various positions in Marks & Spencer PLC during
a 19-year career and held the position of general manager of
Asia regional head office in Hong Kong from 1996 to 1998.
Mr. Feniger holds a Bachelor of Science degree (with Honours)
in Management Sciences from The Victoria University of
Manchester, the UK.

Mr. FU Jin Ming, Patrick, aged 58, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Fu joined the Group in 1969 in Taiwan and
became a regional vice president in 1987, responsible for
supervising offices in Hong Kong, the PRC, Thailand and the
Philippines. Mr. Fu has extensive experience in the sourcing
industry, particularly in garment. Currently, Mr. Fu oversees a
number of the Group’s major customers in North America and
leads the Group’s China focused projects. Mr. Fu holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Fu Jen Catholic University of
Taiwan and participated in the “Retail Executive Development
Programme” at The University of British Columbia, Canada.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng, aged 52, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Khoo has also been an executive director of
Roly International since 1995. Mr. Khoo advises the Group
on corporate finance related matters. Mr. Khoo has
approximately 10 years of experience in corporate finance
and financial management industry. Mr. Khoo was involved in
the listing of Roly International on the Main Board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited in 1996 and
the listing of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in 2002.
Mr. Khoo worked for an international accounting firm and an
investment bank prior to joining a subsidiary of Roly
International in 1994. Mr. Khoo holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Southern Methodist University,
Dallas, Texas. Mr. Khoo is a Certified Public Accountant in
the US and an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants.

Mr. KWOK Chi Kueng, aged 45, is an executive director and the
finance director of the Company responsible for the finance
function of the Group. Mr. Kwok joined the Group in 1993.
Mr. Kwok has over 20 years of accounting and financial
management experience gained in Hong Kong and Canada in
the trading and manufacturing industries. Mr. Kwok holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University). Mr. Kwok
is an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 42, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the
managing partner of 698 Capital (HK) Limited, a private
company based in Hong Kong whose principal activity is
investment in private high growth companies in the Asia Pacific
region. Previously, Mr. Wang was a co-founder and executive
director of KGI Asia Limited, the investment banking arm of
the Koos Group of Taiwan. Mr. Wang also serves on the board
of directors of several finance and technology companies in
the region and was previously a member of the board of
Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and a branch of Softbank Finance Corporation. Mr.
Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law School
and practised corporate and securities law in Hong Kong and
New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of California at Los Angeles, the US.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 45, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Wong is the chief executive officer
of Global China Group Holdings Limited, a listed company in
Hong Kong principally engaged in media ownership and
services, human capital management, and broadband content
and distribution. Mr. Wong has more than 15 years of
experience in investment banking business in Greater China.
Mr. Wong is a chartered accountant and holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of Manchester, Institute
of Science and Technology, the UK. Mr. Wong is also an
independent non-executive director of Legend Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
principally engaged in the sale and manufacture of personal
computers and related products and systems integration.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Dr. Woon is the CEO of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. He served as
executive director of the Washington State China Relations
Council from 1994-97. A career US Air Force officer who
retired as a Colonel in 1993, Dr. Woon served as China policy
advisor for the US Secretary of Defense from 1989-94, and
was assigned to the US Embassy in Beijing from 1983-85.
Dr. Woon, who has a Ph.D in Mathematics, was an associate
professor of Mathematics in the late 1970s at the US Air
Force Academy. Dr. Woon is a member of the Council on
Foreign Relations. He is on the board of the Hong Kong Articles
Numbering Association, Tradelink Electronic Commerce,
Ocean Park and the Hong Kong Tennis Foundation. He is also
on the Board of Governors of Hong Kong Design Centre. Dr.
Woon is a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Investment
Promotion Strategy Group and the Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission. He was named Director
of the Year in Hong Kong in the non-profit category in 2001.

Senior Management of the Group

Mr. Manuel Ignacio LOPEZ, aged 46, joined the Group in 2002
as corporate director who oversees day-to-day operations of
the Group. Mr. Lopez was previously with Li & Fung (Trading)
Limited as general manager of operations. And prior to that,
Mr. Lopez served as executive vice president in charge of
operations for Colby International Limited for 14 years. Mr.
Lopez holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Georgia State University.

Mr. Bruce Charles CAUSTON, aged 55, is a corporate director
of the Group responsible for a number of major customers in
North America and Europe and manages on a regional basis
the Group’s offices in Southeast Asia and Africa. He joined
the Group in 1993 as a general manager of the Indonesian
office and became a regional director in 1996. Mr. Causton has
extensive experience in the trading industry.
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Mr. Peter McDIARMID, aged 58, is a corporate director of the
Group responsible for a number of major customers in the UK
and manages on a regional basis the Group’s offices in China
and Korea. He also oversees the Group’s quality assurance
and technical services. Mr. McDiarmid has been with the Group
since 1996 and has extensive experience in the buying industry
and in the manufacturing industry.

Mr. LEE Mun Yuen, Davies, aged 41, joined the Group in 2003
as the hardgoods business director with global responsibility
for hardgoods development and expansion. Mr. Lee held similar
senior management positions at Target Brands, Inc., Colby
International Limited and Pacific Resources Export Limited,
the former buying agent for Wal-Mart. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor
of Science degree from Wilfrid Laurier University of Canada.

Mr. LEE Wai Man, Raymond, aged 37, joined the Group in 2003
as its I.T. business director responsible for the Group’s I.T.
strategies and infrastructure development, including
L.0.G.0.N. system. Mr. Lee was previously director of technical
operations at Outblaze Limited and prior to that, he held senior
[.T. positions with the HK Jockey Club and Sybase Hong Kong
Ltd.. Mr. Lee holds a Master of Science degree from University

of California, Los Angeles.

Mr. WONG Man Ho, Samuel, aged 40, is the general manager
responsible for the Group’s social compliance function. Mr.
Wong is mainly responsible for developing and implementing
the global compliance programme in different regions. Mr.
Wong set up the global compliance network and communicates
with the Group’s customers for all the compliance status
updates. Mr. Wong attended the SA8000 implementation
workshop organised by Hong Kong Productivity Council in
1999.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Gillian BELL, aged 37, is the creative director of the Group
responsible for product development, market intelligence and
fashion research. Ms. Bell started her career with the Group
in the Sri Lankan office as the product development manager.
Ms. Bell was subsequently transferred to the Bangalore office
in India and was then moved to the head office in Hong Kong
in 1998. Ms. Bell was awarded a Bachelor of Arts degree by
Crewe and Alsager College of Higher Education and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Clothing Technology by Manchester
Polytechnic. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Ms. Bell
worked as a designer for a joint venture company of Mast
Industries while in Sri Lanka.

Company Secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 35, is the company secretary
of the Company and Roly International. Ms. Cheung joined a
subsidiary of Roly International in 1997 as an assistant
company secretary. Ms. Cheung has over 10 years of company
secretarial experience gained in listed companies. Ms. Cheung
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the UK.
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The board of directors of the Company is committed
to raising the standard of corporate governance and
level of transparency of the Group.

During the year under review, the Company appointed an
additional independent non-executive director, Dr. WOON Yi
Teng, Eden. As a result, the number of independent non-
executive directors of the Company increased from two, being
the minimum number of independent non-executive directors
required by the existing Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules™), to three out of a board comprising eight
members.

Recognising the need for making independent and objective
judgement on remuneration matters of the board and senior
management, the board of directors has delegated its authority
to fix the remuneration package of directors and chief executive
of the Company and implement the share option scheme to
the compensation committee which currently comprises five
members, the majority of which, including the chairman, are
independent non-executive directors.

To stay in line with the current corporate trend, the board of
directors plans to begin reporting of the Company'’s financial
results on a quarterly basis from the financial year commenced
on 1 May 2003. The board aims at, with the implementation
of such reporting schedules, informing shareholders of the
performance of the Group on a more frequent and timely
manner. Also, the board believes that this move will be able
to further enhance the Company'’s relationships with investors
and media.

Board of Directors

The board comprises eight members, three of whom are
independent non-executive directors. The functions of the
board of directors are carried out either directly or through
board committees or by means of a system of delegation of
authority to management personnel. To ensure the board is in
a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, all
members of the board of directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the following
committees have been set up:

Executive Committee

The executive committee consists of all the executive directors
of the Company. The board has delegated the day-to-day
management and operation functions of the Company to the
executive committee save to the extent that the powers and
authorities are reserved to the compensation committee or
the full board. The powers and authorities reserved to the full
board include the approval of the Company’s financial
statements, dividends, change in share capital, certain material
transactions and matters involving a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a director. The authorities reserved
to the compensation committee are more particularly discussed
below.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three members, namely
Messrs. WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee),
WONG Wai Ming and WOON Yi Teng, Eden, all are independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice, the audit
committee is set up with written terms of reference prepared
based on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The primary duties
of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual
reports and accounts, interim reports and quarterly results
announcements and to provide advice and comments thereon
to the directors. The members meet regularly with the external
auditors and the Company’s senior management for the review
and supervision of the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control procedures.

Compensation Committee

The compensation committee, comprising Messrs. WONG Wai
Ming (chairman of the committee), WANG Arthur Minshiang,
WOON Yi Teng, Eden, WANG Lu Yen and Steven Julien
FENIGER, has been delegated with the powers and authorities
to implement the share option scheme of the Company and to
deal with all compensation matters regarding the directors
and senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective
agreement/contract with the relevant member of the Group.
No director is allowed to be involved in deciding his own
remuneration package.
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The Group is committed to establishing the closest relationship
with the investment community. During the year under review,
the Group’s focus was to promote investors’ understanding of
the Group’s growth prospects whilst keeping them abreast of
the latest trends in the sourcing industry.

The Group is pleased to report that in the Company’s first
year as a publicly listed company, the investment industry
has shown a strong interest in meeting with the senior
management, and understanding the key elements to the
business model and growth drivers. As part of our commitment
to provide major investment analysts with an insight into the
Group'’s strategies and strengths, the Group held two investor
presentations, two road-shows, five investor conferences and
35 investor meetings during the year under review. Investor
updates on the Group'’s latest development were disseminated
on a regular basis. The Group also held press conferences
and investor meetings after both interim results and final
results announcements.

To facilitate efficient response to the investment community,
the Group also conducted an investor audit during the year
under review. The information gathered is invaluable in
promoting a mutual understanding between the Group and
the investors. The Group’s initiatives in investor relations are
extensions to its corporate governance policies. During the
year under review, the Group appointed a third independent
non-executive director and planned to switch to quarterly
reporting with effect from the financial year commenced on 1
May 2003. These measures reflect the Group’s ongoing
commitment to enhance transparency and corporate
governance practices.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Analyst Contact Information
THEBKER

Cazenove Asia Limited
EREMNERAT
Denise Chai

ELRENE

denise.chai@cazenove.com
T: (852) 2123 0308
F: (852) 2868 1411

CLSA Limited
BEREEFERAT
Sarah Lee

LR

sarah.lee@clsa.com
T: (852) 2600 8350
F: (852) 2845 9844

Core Pacific-Yamaichi International (HK) Ltd.

mE|-EREB)ERAT
Bonnie Lai

=
ROE

bonnie.lai@cpy.com.hk
T: (852) 2826 0006
F: (852) 2536 9916

DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited
DBSEEEBERAA

Alice Hui

SrEs
alice_hui@hk.dbsvickers.com

T: (852) 2971 1960
F: (852) 2521 1812
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HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited
EEES(EEMERAF
Anne Ling

PREEAR

anneling@hsbc.com.hk

T: (852) 2996 6572
F: (852) 2845 1593

ING Securities Limited

Andrew Kuet
B E

andrew.kuet@asia.ing.com
T: (852) 2913 8576
F: (852) 2810 6127

Kim Eng Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd.

TSRS (BB)ERAT
Jimmy Lam

MIRET
jlam@kimeng.com.hk

T: (852) 2532 8263
F: (852) 2877 0104

SBI E2-Capital Research Limited
YESEMERRBEERLA
Patricia Yeung

EEH

patriciayeung@softbank.com.hk
T: (852) 2533 3721
F: (852) 2533 3733
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Directors’ Report
| EEER

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2003.

Group Reorganisation
The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25
January 2002 as an exempted company with limited

liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the
Company became the holding company of the companies
comprising the Group on 22 April 2002. Details of the
group reorganisation are set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 April 2002 (“Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 10 May 2002.

Principal Activities
The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

Note 28 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of

these activities during the year under review.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April
2003 are set out in the consolidated income statements
on page 58.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExEWEE

Results and Appropriations (continued)

An interim dividend of 2.4 HK cents per share amounting
to US$1,992,000 was declared and paid to the
shareholders during the year under review. The directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3.5
HK cents per share in respect of the year ended 30 April
2003. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend
will be paid in cash on or about 18 September 2003 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 September 2003.

Share Capital

On 8 May 2002, the Company issued 124,800,000 shares
of US$0.02 each at HK$1.68 per share to the public
and, through a placement, to certain investors.

Immediately after the above-mentioned new issue and
placement, an amount of US$9,944,000 standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company
was capitalised for the issuance of 497,200,000 shares
of US$0.02 each of the Company to RGS Holdings
Limited, being the then sole shareholder of the Company
as at 22 April 2002.

On 27 May 2002, 23,400,000 shares of US$0.02 each
of the Company were issued at HK$1.68 per share to
certain investors pursuant to the exercise of the over-
allotment option granted to the underwriters in relation to
the above-mentioned placement in full by DBS Asia
Capital Limited on behalf of the underwriters.

All the shares which were issued during the year under
review ranked pari passu with the then existing shares in
all respects save for the participation in the capitalisation
issue referred to above.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 20 to the
financial statements.
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Machinery and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s machinery and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 11 to the
financial statements.

Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company or a committee thereof may grant options
to eligible persons (Note) to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The Scheme specifically excludes Mr. WANG
Lu Yen from participating in the Scheme so long as he
remains as a substantial shareholder (as such term is
construed in accordance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”)) of the Company.

Note:
The eligible persons under the Scheme include:

(i) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(ii) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of
the Company; or

(iii) any business partner, agent, consultant, representative,
supplier of goods or services or customer of any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company
or any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

The initial total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10 per cent. of the shares of the
Company in issue immediately following the listing of the
Company’s shares.
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Share Options (continued)

Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders,
the aggregate number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30 per cent. of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. Options granted to the independent
non-executive directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates in excess
of 0.1 per cent. of the Company’s shares in issue and
with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million
resulting in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options already granted and to
be granted to such person under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of grant of
such option must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to
any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised
and outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant shall not exceed 1 per cent.
of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made, upon payment
of HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any
time commencing on the date as the board may determine
and ending on such date as the board may determine
but shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.
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Share Options (continued) BRE @
Details of the options to subscribe for shares of the REEFEARTEERALTREARQRK
Company granted to eligible persons during the year under 9 Z BRREEB O T -

review are shown as follows:

Number of underlying shares of the Company

HBEZARRARAEE
Granted to Outstanding Exercise
Granted to other as at price Exercise
Date of grant directors employees  Exercised Lapsed 30 April 2003 per share period
(Note 1) (Note 3) (HK$)
R-22=F
mA=+H
R AH BRYES BRYHMES (ig:d xH HRTE BRIEE THEBR
(Fe1) (H523) (B1)
21/05/2002 17,240,000 23,430,000 - (6,240,000) 34,430,000 2.55 21/05/2003 -
(Note 4) 20/05/2008
(Hizt4)
27/06/2002 1,660,000 1,600,000 - (1,600,000) 1,660,000 2.22 27/06/2003 -
(Note 5) 26/06/2008
(Hiets)
06/11/2002 10,700,000 8,200,000 - (100,000) 18,800,000 1.60  06/11/2003 -
(Note 6) 05/11/2008
(Kite)
29,600,000 (Note 2) 33,230,000 - (7,940,000) 54,890,000
(H#t2)
Notes: Bi&E -
1. Details of options granted to each of the directors are set 1. BFIZSEE2BEREFIRAREETX
out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares, [EERNARRREAEREBR ZKRG - HE
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and B RESHP 2] —& -

its Associated Corporations” in this report below.
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Share Options (continued)

Notes (continued):

Out of these options, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 12,600,000 shares of the Company were granted to Mr.
Steven Julien FENIGER, an executive director of the
Company. The number of shares underlying such options
(i.e. 12,600,000 shares in aggregate) are in excess of the
individual limit permitted under the rules of the Scheme
and the Listing Rules. Approval from shareholders of the
Company in relation to the grant of options in excess of
the individual limit to Mr. Steven Julien FENIGER was
obtained at the annual general meeting and special general
meeting of the Company held on 13 September 2002 and
11 March 2003 respectively. Details of the grant of such
options are disclosed in the Company’s circulars dated 19
August 2002 and 14 February 2003 respectively.

Other employees include employees of the Group and of
the subsidiaries of Roly International Holdings Ltd. (“Roly
International”) (other than the directors of the Company)
working under employment contracts with the Group or
subsidiaries of Roly International which are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong).

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on 17 May
2002, being the trading day immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant options, was HK$2.60 per
share.

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on 26 June
2002, being the trading day immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant options, was HK$2.075 per
share.

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on 5
November 2002, being the trading day immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant options, was
HK$1.55 per share.
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Share Options (continued)

The options granted are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are exercised, and no charge is
recorded in the income statement or balance sheet for
their cost. Upon the exercise of the options, the resulting
shares to be issued will be recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares will be recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. As at 1 May
2002, there was no outstanding options. Options which
have lapsed or been cancelled will be deducted from the
outstanding options. Save for the options referred to in
the above table which have lapsed during the year ended
30 April 2003, no option has lapsed or been cancelled
during the year ended 30 April 2003. As at 30 April
2003, options carrying rights to subscribe for 54,890,000

shares of the Company were outstanding.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to state
the value of the share options granted to the eligible
persons during the year under review on the ground that
there are serious limitations in the application of the
Black-Scholes Model and the Binomial Model in the
valuation of share options, especially there are a number
of variables which are crucial for the calculation of the
options value thus rendering such value cannot be
reasonably determined. Accordingly, the directors believe
that any valuation of the share options based on a great
number of speculative assumptions would not be

meaningful and may be misleading to the shareholders.
Subject to the earlier termination of the Scheme in

accordance with the rules governing the Scheme, the
Scheme will expire on 22 April 2012.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year under
review and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors
WANG Lu Yen

Steven Julien FENIGER
FU Jin Ming, Patrick
KHOO Kim Cheng
KWOK Chi Kueng

Independent non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang
WONG Wai Ming

WOON Yi Teng, Eden (appointed on 28 January 2003)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Steven Julien FENIGER and Mr. KHOO Kim
Cheng will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-
laws, Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.

Each of Messrs. WANG Lu Yen, Steven Julien FENIGER,
FU Jin Ming, Patrick, KHOO Kim Cheng and KWOK Chi
Kueng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three years commenced
from 1 May 2002, and will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than six months’ notice in writing.

Messrs. WANG Arthur Minshiang and WONG Wai Ming
have been appointed since 22 April 2002 for a term of
two years commenced from 1 May 2002. Dr. WOON Yi
Teng, Eden has been appointed since 28 January 2003
for a term of two years from 1 February 2003. They are
subject to the right of the independent non-executive
director to terminate their appointments at any time by
giving the Company at least one month’s notice in writing.
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Directors (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 30 April 2003, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO, or were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of
the Company and its associated corporations

Company/Name
of associated

BE (#)
fREXFIEEESN  SEFHELELDF

FEEMNHBERARTLENAEE AR
—FRATERE CEERERIN MR LEZ
RIBEH -

EERARAIREEBEIE 2R
- HEHBEROEREST &R

RZZFZE=ZFMA=1H ARBZE=F
RATREER AR T&ﬁ*ﬁﬁywil(i%ﬁ
BREDIFESTIEEF LR ([F
MBI B+ R 2B **Eﬁﬁﬂx@&
EFPHREACAARAREZESLHE
EPIZE3L2GFEZERM s JAR -

H(MFE)RELTRAEFTETESR
SZZESTABENEG ARR R AT 2

wmMORBEIT

(1) RAEQXFAREEBEZE 2RO H
ZEERKRR

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class

Number and class of securities as

corporations Name of directors  Capacity of securities at 30 April 2003
(Note 1)

R-BE=F

MA=+RH%E

NP L EEBIESH

EEZER BEEps 27 BEHERER ZRERSL
(Kfzt1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.10%
PiN/NE T%E E=nEEA ordinary shares
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ExEWEE

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying EERALAREEBLIEZR
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its 0 - HERORESP 2 EH
Associated Corporations (continued) (#)
(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of () REATREEBEZE 2 RH+
the Company and its associated corporations ZHERRAXR (B
(continued)
Percentage
shareholding in
Company/Name the same class
of associated Number and class of securities as
corporations Name of directors  Capacity of securities at 30 April 2003
(Note 1)
R-BB=F
mMA=+AH%E
NNl GEFEE
EEZER BEEpng 514 EHHERER ZREBSL
(ffzt1)
Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of a 468,000,000 72.29%
/N THE controlled ordinary shares
corporation TmAk (L)
REGEE 2 R
(Note 2)
(Ktit2)
Company Steven Julien Beneficial owner 144,000 0.02%
PiN/NE] FENIGER ExnERA ordinary shares
DEAER TER (L)
Company KHOO Kim Cheng  Beneficial owner 170,000 0.03%
/NG B 8 7R E=nEEA ordinary shares

EmE (L)

Company WANG Arthur Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
FAN/NE Minshiang EnEAA ordinary shares
T G A (L)
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 20,200,000 5.18%
2B EE TE EnBBA ordinary shares
(Note 3) R (L)
(Kt7t3)

—ERE=EEE HEEE
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EsEWREE

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its

Associated Corporations (continued)

(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of
the Company and its associated corporations

(continued)

Company/Name
of associated

(%)

Number and class

EERARAREEBEEZR
- EHBROKESZP &R

(1) RERQARAREEBEE 2RO F
ZREBERKXR #)

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
of securities as

corporations Name of directors  Capacity of securities at 30 April 2003
(Note 1)
R-ZBE=F
mMA=+HE
NNl 5 38 Bl 3% 3
EEZER BEEpng 514 BEHERER ZREBRD
(Kfzt1)
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Interest of 350,000 0.09%
2EBEB %@ spouse ordinary shares
(Note 3) e 48 2 #E 5 EEk (L)
(K#:£3) (Note 4)
(Ktzt4)
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Interest of a 121,234,500 31.07%
2EBEB %@ controlled ordinary shares
(Note 3) corporation TR (L)
(KraE3) XEEEE 2 ER
(Note 5)
(Kt7£5)
Roly International FU Jin Ming, Beneficial owner 1,380,000 0.35%
2 BB R Patrick ExnEAA ordinary shares
(Note 3) 1% 1% A TEE (L)
(Kti£3)
Roly International KHOO Kim Cheng  Beneficial owner 625,000 0.16%

2 BB R
(Note 3)
(B 7£3)
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EsEeHREE

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations (continued)
(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of

EERARAREEBEIE 2R
HEHBROEESETz2ER

(1) REDBREEBEE 2RO F
ZRmERRRE (8

the Company and its associated corporations

(continued)

Company/Name
of associated

Number and class

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
of securities as

corporations Name of directors  Capacity of securities at 30 April 2003
(Note 1)
R-BB=F
B=+H%E
NNl GEFEE
EEZER BEEpng 514 EHHERER ZREBSL
(ffzt1)
Westman Linmark WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 2 preference shares 0.10%
(Thailand) Ltd. EF#%E ExBEAA B (L)
(Note 6)
(Ktzte)
Westman Linmark Steven Julien Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.05%
(Thailand) Ltd. FENIGER EREEA B (L)
(Note 6) SBEHE
(Ktzte)
Westman Linmark FU Jin Ming, Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.05%
(Thailand) Ltd. Patrick ExnBAA BER (L)
(Note 6) 1% 1% 9
(Ktzte)
Westman Linmark KHOO Kim Cheng  Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.05%

(Thailand) Ltd.
(Note 6)
(BfiF6)

BERBEAA

'R ()

SRRSEERHELE
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying EERALAREEBLIEZR
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its 0 - HERORESP 2 EH
Associated Corporations (continued) (#)

(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of (1) RAQTAREEH EIE ZRHH

the Company and its associated corporations ZHERRAXR (B
(continued)
Percentage
shareholding in
Company/Name the same class

of associated Number and class of securities as

corporations Name of directors  Capacity of securities at 30 April 2003
(Note 1)
R-ZBE=F
R=tH%
NG 2D BERESH
FE2EB BEEps 27 EFBERER ZREBDL
(ffat1)
Westman Linmark KWOK Chi Kueng  Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.05%
(Thailand) Ltd. EIFE EnBEAA &5 i (L)
(Note 6)
(ff&te)
Notes: Wizt -

(1)

The letter “L” represents the director’s interests in
the shares.

(1)

(LD EE RN 2 -

(2) As at 30 April 2003, Mr. WANG Lu Yen, Mrs. WANG (2) RZZEZ=FMA=1+H T¥E%
LIAW Bin Bin, his wife, and Megastar Holdings HERHEZFEWW AL EATIHE
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. WANG Lu Yen, St HE P2 1 2 A F] Megastar Holdings
held approximately 36.34 per cent. of the issued share Limited& H3FH 2 BB B # TR A
capital of Roly International. Mr. WANG Lu Yen is #936.34% - Bt - BIEFHLKPEK
thus deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested Bl TREEEREREEE2I2E
in all the shares of the Company in which Roly B EERS 2 ANRARG -
International is interested.

(3) As at 30 April 2003, Roly International, the ultimate (3)

holding company of the Company, through RGS
Holdings Limited, held 468,000,000 shares,
representing 72.29 per cent. of the then issued share
capital of the Company. As at 30 April 2003, the
issued share capital of Roly International was
US$39,013,976.40 divided into 390,139,764 shares
of US$0.10 each.
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RZZEZ=ZFMA=+H ARQA&
YRR A A 2 E BB E B RGS
Holdings Limited #f % 468,000,000/%
B ERAAREREBFEITHRA
7229% - RZEE=FWA=+8 -
2HERBEBBZEHITR A A
39,013,976.40% Tt *© » 5B
390,139,764 T AR EE0.103 T2 it
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExEWEE

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures of the Company and its

Associated Corporations (continued)

(1) Interests and short positions in the shares of
the Company and its associated corporations
(continued)

(4)

These shares in Roly International were held by Mrs.
WANG LIAW Bin Bin, the wife of Mr. WANG Lu Yen.

These shares in Roly International were held by
Megastar Holdings Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen. Mr.
WANG Lu Yen is a director of Megastar Holdings
Limited.

Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. is a subsidiary of
the Company. As at 30 April 2003, the issued share
capital of Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. was
8,000,000 Baht divided into 1,960 ordinary shares
of 2,000 Baht each and 2,040 preference shares of
2,000 Baht each.

EERARAREEBEEZR
- EHBEROKESZP &S

(%)

(1) RERQRAREEBEE 2 RO F
ZREBERRXR &)

(4)

(5)

(6)

ZEZRBEBEROBERBEEZE
FEWHZLHER -

ZE 2B BB KM B Megastar
Holdings Limited¥ & ° Megastar
Holdings Limitedz 2 & 2 #1721
FTHEBEEHRB  THRBEER
Megastar Holdings Limited 2 E 3 -

Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd.%
RRAZWBAR - RZZTE=FMN
A =+ B ' Westman Linmark
(Thailand) Ltd.Z2 B BITRA A
8,000,000F & - 9 /& 1,960/ & IR E
B2,000F % 2 LKk - A K2,040/%
HREE2,000R %k 2 EBERK

—ERE=EEE HEEE
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its

EERARAREEBEEZR
- EHBROKESZP &R

Roly International

2k B R

Roly International

2k B R

Roly International

2k B R

Roly International

2k B R

LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2003

Steven Julien FENIGER
BEE

FU Jin Ming, Patrick
R

KHOO Kim Cheng
£ 7 °R

KWOK Chi Kueng
LR

Beneficial owner
Em#EA A

Beneficial owner
Em#EA A

Beneficial owner

Em#EA A

\

Beneficial owner
Em#EA A

Associated Corporations (continued) (#)
(2) Interests and short positions in the underlying (2) RAQX TR EBE EE 2 HERKR
shares of the Company and its associated BHR2EERKXR
corporations
Company/Name of Number of
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity underlying shares
(Notes 1 and 2)
ARFHBELIEzER EBHS 514 HEARG ZHE
(KaF1X%2)
Company Steven Julien FENIGER Beneficial owner 12,600,000 (L)
ZAN/NES| BEE BEmBEAA
Company FU Jin Ming, Patrick Beneficial owner 6,200,000 (L)
ZAN/NES| 15 % BH BEmBEAA
Company KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 6,000,000 (L)
ZAN/NES| 87 °R BEmBEAA
Company KWOK Chi Kueng Beneficial owner 4,800,000 (L)
ZAN/NES Bl BEmBEAA

2,000,000 (L)

2,045,000 (L)

6,350,000 (L)

645,000 (L)
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ExEWEE

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations (continued)

(2)

(3)

Interests and short positions in the underlying
shares of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)
Notes:

1. The letter “L” represents the directors’ interests in
the shares.

2. Details of the above underlying shares are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures”.

Interests and short positions in the debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2003, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Companies.

EERARAREEBEEZR

- EHBEROKESZP &S

(%)

(2 REQAAREMEBEE 2 EBR
M zEERXE (&)

iz

1. TUTSHEEEREN 2= -

2. LMBBERONDZFBENEZEE
i REHZERN] —& -

(B REAQAAREMEB EE 2 BESH
ZRERERKXR
RZZEZ=FMA=+H "  ARQRAZ
EFRTRASBERADR RHEM
BEEZEFTHRBATALTRAR
BREs LB HRIFI2GFE 2 ERL
fMeEEMIARARBELTAAE
FETESXHZBFETAANE R
RAINBRMZERIRE °

SRRSEER HELE
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or EERERNIEFZERN
Debhentures

Pursuant to the share option schemes of Roly REAQXFTZEEIRAF 2 EEE 2 ERK
International, the ultimate holding company of the #: 28 KRARIESZNIES A ILEEBEK
Company, the directors and employees of the Company HE E& BI5R T HER 2B 2 8 EER G5
may, at the discretion of the directors of Roly International, ZHEi# - R -_ZTZT=FM/=+H ' K
be granted options to subscribe for shares of Roly R FIEZ=C ERM® KITE 2 B #E WD
International. Particulars of the options granted to the | :

directors of the Company and remained outstanding as

at 30 April 2003 were as follows:

Number of underlying shares of Roly International

HEZ2REBRAEE

Outstanding Exercise

As at as at 30 price
Name of directors Date of grant 1 May 2002 Granted Exercised Lapsed  April 2003 per share  Exercise period

(US$)

R=2%=f
R=2EB=f% B=tH

s RitAH TA-H i (g 5% HRTE SROHEE TSR

(%71)
Steven Julien FENIGER 07/03/2002 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.130 07/03/2004-
BEl 06/03/2010
22/11/2002 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.138 22/11/2003-
21/11/2008
FU Jin Ming, Patrick 10/02/2000 150,000 - (105,000) - 45,000 0.150 10/02/2001-
BEH 09/02/2005
21/08/2001 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.100 21/08/2002-
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.130 07/03/2004-
06/03/2010
KHOO Kim Cheng 26/02/1998 750,000 - - (750,000) - 0.177 26/02/1999-
R 25/02/2003
10/02/2000 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.150 10/02/2001-
09/02/2005
21/08/2001 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 0.100 21/08/2002-
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 0.130 07/03/2004-
06/03/2010
22/11/2002 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 0.138 22/11/2003-
21/11/2008
KWOK Chi Kueng 10/02/2000 150,000 - (105,000) - 45,000 0.150 10/02/2001-
PEH 09/02/2005
21/08/2001 400,000 - (200,000) - 200,000 0.100 21/08/2002-
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 400,000 - - - 400,000 0.130 07/03/2004-
06/03/2010
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ExEWEE

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or

Debentures (continued)

Options granted to the executive directors of the Company
under the Scheme during the year ended 30 April 2003

were as follow:

Number of
underlying shares

EERERDIEF 2EFA (&)
RBE_ZTZ=FONA=THLFE R

BRATEETARARZHITES 2B
wmr

Exercise price

Name of directors Date of grant of the Company per share Exercise period
(HK$)
L PRI
Exps REAH RGO EA BRITEE TEHIR
(7B)
Steven Julien FENIGER 21/05/2002 6,240,000 2.55 21/05/2003-20/05/2008
B 27/06/2002 1,660,000 2.22 27/06/2003-26/06/2008
06/11/2002 4,700,000 1.60 06/11/2003-05/11/2008
FU Jin Ming, Patrick 21/05/2002 4,200,000 2.55 21/05/2003-20/05/2008
% 1% 5 06/11/2002 2,000,000 1.60 06/11/2003-05/11/2008
KHOO Kim Cheng 21/05/2002 3,800,000 2.55 21/05/2003-20/05/2008
B 88 7R 06/11/2002 2,200,000 1.60 06/11/2003-05/11/2008
KWOK Chi Kueng 21/05/2002 3,000,000 2.55 21/05/2003-20/05/2008
20558 06/11/2002 1,800,000 1.60 06/11/2003-05/11/2008

Up to 30 April 2003, none of the above options granted

by the Company to the directors of the Company had

been exercised and all such options remained outstanding

as at 30 April 2003.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the

year ended 30 April 2003 was the Company, or any of its

holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a

party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the

Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

HE-BT=FMA=tAL LA#A
ARAETADAEF 2 BT RES
# MR-FE=EMA=+A " MEX
% AR B R AT -

BREXFEREEI RBEE-_TT=FMN
A=+ RUEFEEAEHE  ARAHEE
R AR - FRKE QR M E R E
B2ETVERRE  EARREFTAHE
BARRR ST EAMEE Z B H1E 5
A a5 -

CER-EFRMEEE



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EsEWREE

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 30 April 2003, the Group had the
following connected transactions (within the meaning of
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules):

(1)

(2)

Roly Buying Agency Agreements

The Group has entered into separate buying agency
agreements (collectively, the “Roly Buying Agency
Agreements”) with each of Vigor International (H.K.)
Limited (“Vigor”), Midway Enterprises (Guang Zhou)
Ltd. (“Midway”) and Toonsland Limited (“Toonsland”)
whereby the Group has been appointed as the buying
agent for each of Vigor, Midway and Toonsland
(collectively, the “Principals”) in connection with the
sourcing of merchandise required by the Principals
for their respective businesses.

Each of the Roly Buying Agency Agreements is for
an indefinite term and the remuneration of the Group
under such agreements is calculated on a
commission basis with reference to the value of the
merchandise sourced. For the year ended 30 April
2003, the commission paid to the Group by the
Principals amounted to approximately US$3,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,000).

Administration Services Agreement

Pursuant to an administration services agreement
(“Administration Services Agreement”) dated 22 April
2002 made between Linmark (HK) Limited (“Linmark
(HK)"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Midway, Linmark (HK) has agreed to reimburse
Midway the operation costs of its office in Shenzhen,
the PRC, in consideration of Midway's providing
certain administration services including, inter alia,
the provision of staff, premises to house such staff
and other operating and administrative services to
Linmark (HK). The operation costs to be shared
include salary of the relevant staff, rental and other
office expenses on a reimbursement basis.
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BEXS
REBEZE-_TT=FHA=ZTAHLEFE &
SEBTIEEBEERS (EER EMHRA
F147F) :

(1) ZRKRBREDHS

AEEDKE FHBER(FB)BRA
AL  BEMPERBARREESR
RAR(THE]) R REBREERAR
([RBRM]) 2 BT L RBE R
(2R RBRERR]) - Bt
AEEEDRHEZERLRE  PEK
TBXM (EBIRFEAD 2EKBR
B BZRARBEEBEEMREZ

1= O

Boon °

BNE2RRBREBZDERTER
H > MAKBEREZFHEMKRERZ
MeH2EMmEBEMmZEBERZAS
EEHFE - HE-_TT=FWA=+
ABIEFE  ZREARANEENZHA
& #9 /33,0003 7T (1 F 1 #723,00078
TT) °

17 B AR 7% 15 o
BERARGz22ENBREMNE (F
) BRAGR ([HE (FE)]) B R
—EE-FNA-+-HRVZITR
PR - M (FE) ERE R
BEEUANFBERIZHEE 2 LZ
A - (ERAERMNE () RHE
FIHRB2RE  HPBERHES
T BIFEREMEERTHAR
o LHMEEERTHIB ZEEHAR
PREBBEIZHS  HEeREM4mH
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(2)

(3)

Administration Services Agreement (continued)
The Administration Services Agreement is for an
initial term of one year commencing from 1 May
2002. However, since September 2002, no further
transaction has taken place pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Administration Services
Agreement.

For the year ended 30 April 2003, the operating
costs shared by the Group amounted to approximately
Us$57,000
HK$445,000).

(equivalent to approximately

As set out in the Prospectus, the Company has
applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a
waiver (“Waiver”) from strict compliance with Rule
14.25(1) of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Administration Services Agreement. During the year
ended 30 April 2003, the aggregate amount of the
administrative charges paid under the Administration
Services Agreement was about US$57,000
(approximately HK$445,000), such transaction shall
thus fall within the de-minimis exemption under Rule
14.24(5) of the Listing Rules.

Tenancy agreement

On 1 March 2002, Linmark (HK) entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with
Turmar Limited (a company owned by Mr. WANG Lu
Yen and his spouse) whereby Turmar Limited agreed
to lease to Linmark (HK) Flat No. 57, 8th Floor,
Tower 9, Hong Kong Parkview, No. 88 Tai Tam
Reservoir Road, Hong Kong of a gross floor area of
approximately 256.78 sqg.m. (approximately 2,764
sq.ft.) together with car parking space No. 56 on car
park entrance 4 (Level 3) of the garage at the same
development for a term of 24 months commencing
from 1 February 2002. The Group has been granted
an option to terminate the Tenancy Agreement by
serving two months’ notice to Turmar Limited upon
the expiry of the initial 12 months from the date of
the Tenancy Agreement.

s
(2)

5 (
THRBHE @)

THREBER _ZEE-_FHA—H
RIS AE—F - A B-FTF
:Enﬂtﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ%%%%
BRRIGEHETERZS o

"j\/

E-_EE—FNA=ZFTHILE
CAREBOBZEERAY A
57,0003 Jt (& #9445,000%8 70) °

FNBBRERAM - ARFREHBR
iR e ([Fe]) BIEET EMR
A1%14.25(1) B ATEREHBHE 2
RA WEEBBMZME FTZERR
REBEEZE-ZTZ=FWOA=1+THILF
B BETEREBZEI T Z2TBE
A 42 %8 49 /57,0003 7T (49445,0007%
) AZEXRSHE ELTRAUE
14.24(5) G2 AKE % o

(wﬁﬁﬁ%

AZZEE_F=ZA—H  HEEGEH)
HESERAR (EHBRERBHES
ZARDRINEERZ ([AERE]) -
BEESARAAREBUNEEKR
VB KIE B 885 AF L T S5O R 8B 575
i(%%ﬁ@?i@ﬁ%z% 78%F 5 K (&
2,764 F 5 R)) - BEUNFE—EEIEER
ZIEEISEIBAK A O ELS65R = EN
HETHE(FE)  HBEH_TZT=
FZA—HRBAHH24MEA - AEE
EREEREREBHEI2ERE R
B oMEEERARBEMEAR 2B
ML FAERZE -

CER=FERMELE
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(3) Tenancy agreement (continued)
The monthly rental payable by the Group to Turmar
Limited under the Tenancy Agreement is HK$85,000
(exclusive of rates and service charges), and the
annual rental payable by the Group thereunder is
HK$1,020,000 (exclusive of rates and service
charges).

For the year ended 30 April 2003, the rentals paid
by the Group amounted
US$131,000

HK$1,020,000).

to approximately

(equivalent to approximately

(4) Sales of merchandise

During the year ended 30 April 2003, the Group
sold merchandise to a subsidiary of Roly International
in the total amount of approximately US$21,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$164,000). The sales
are based on costs of goods purchased from outside
plus a percentage of profit mark-up and on normal
commercial terms.

The directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) consider that each of the above transactions
were conducted in the usual and ordinary course of
business of the Group on normal commercial terms. The
directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) are of the view that the transactions were fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 24 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year under review
or at any time during the year under review.
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(3) HEWHS @)
AEERBEREHEETAESFERAD
A+ 2 A 585,0000 T (R e IE £
MRERE)  MAEEREESTHS
E/FEL N ZHEE A1,020,000/% T
(FTREZMREES) -

BE-TT=FMNA=+ALFE
AEEXNZHEE A /131,000% 7T
(}8% 1 491,020,000/ 7T) °

(4) SHEE m
BE_ZT=-_FMA=+tBHLFE
REE R 2Bz — R E A FH
SR A FEAE2]1,000% T (FBF
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons
who are Required to Disclose their Interests
Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

As at 30 April 2003, the following shareholders (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company are set out above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

(1) Substantial shareholders of the Company

TERRREBBESRHPER
PlE+ A MBEERE2EEZH
fit A £
RZZEZFE=FWA=+H " TIBRER (KR
AIESERITHRAR (BERARA KRG R
MR GD 2 #wmRAR R 30 BRIN R
KRRz RBEROREEBALAR
NAREESF P ERIIEIBCHFEZE
Az EREOKA -

(1) XQXFZ2EERR

Approximate

percentages

of interest as at

Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares 30 April 2003
(Note 1)

R=BE=F

MA=+HZ

BRER HH &% BHOHE HEEHLEIE
(Hfat1)

RGS Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 468,000,000 (L) 72.29%

EmEAA
Roly International Interests of a controlled 468,000,000 (L) 72.29%

(Note 2)
2HBER (FiE2)

corporation

REEEZ s

Notes:
1. The letter “L” represents the entity’s interests in the
shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of RGS Holdings
Limited is owned by Roly International.

iz

L TUNEEEBRRD 2#ES -

2. RGS Holdings Limited Z & %8 2 317 1%

ATRE2EBERESR -

—ERE=EEE HEEE
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons
Who are Required to Disclose their Interests
Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (continued)

(2) Other persons who are required to disclose
their interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed

“Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures of the Company and its Associated

Corporations” and paragraph (1) above, as at 30

April 2003, no other person had interests or short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company which are required to be recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.

Major Customers and Vendors of

the Group’s Customers

During the year under review, the five largest customers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately
67.9 per cent. of the turnover of the Group and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 31.8 per

cent. of the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group’s customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 10.9 per cent. of
the Group’s total shipment volume for the year under

review.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5 per cent. of the issued
share capital of the Company) had any interest in any of
the five largest customers of the Group for the year ended
30 April 2003.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of

the Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 112 and 113 of the annual report.

Corporate Governance

As the Company only became a listed company on 10
May 2002, the requirements to the Code of Best Practice
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“Code of
Best Practice”) apply to the Company from that date
onwards.

The Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice
since the listing date and up to the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
At present, members of the audit committee comprise
Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. WONG Wai Ming and
Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden, being the three independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The audit
committee has reviewed with the management and the
Company’s external auditors the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the report to the audit committee for audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30

April 2003 issued by the external auditors.

The audit committee has also reviewed the terms and
conditions of connected transactions of the Company

which took place during the year ended 30 April 2003.

Auditors
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 July 2003
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Auditors’ Report
| REERES

%) - FARR D BETENT
SBPRTHBEPI11%
K226

Certified Public Accountants
26/F,Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LINMARK GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet of Linmark Group Limited as at 30 April 2003 and
the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows
and recognised gains and losses for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Group’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Group
as at 30 April 2003 and the Group’s results of operations
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 July 2003

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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Consolidated Income Statements
| GEWMER

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

2003 2002

—EEB=HF —EECF

Notes Us$’000 US$’000

Btax FET FET

Turnover L 3 44,294 29,648

Cost of sales & AR (7,104) (473)

Gross profit EH 37,190 29,175

Other operating income H A AL & YA 4 1,757 1,214

Administrative expenses THAX (26,233) (21,821)

Profit from operations £ & 6 12,714 8,568
Interest on obligations under BEHEAERNE

a finance lease (2) (2)
Gain on dissolution of % B BT /B 2 B &

a subsidiary - 37
Profit before taxation B A% A 12,712 8,603
Taxation I8 8 (384) (261)
Profit for the year FE % 12,328 8,342
Dividends % 2 9

— Interim and special —BENFER

dividends, paid 5 B AR B 1,992 10,800

— Final dividend, proposed —HRRERE 2,928 2,490

4,920 13,290

Earnings per share (US cents) TBRER (EM) 10
- Basic — &K 1.9 1.7
— Diluted —#E 1.9 N/A i B
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

I%é%éé%%

At30 April2003 M-ZT=FMA=+H&KH

2003 2002
—BE=F —EEF
Notes Us$’000 USs$'000
Htat FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Machinery and equipment Hes N E 11 1,900 1,358
Club membership @k 119 119
Deferred expenditure FEEE A 12 3,014 3,014
5,033 4,491
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables B E 5 B8R 5K 13 5,725 4,758
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE 2R
other receivables H b JiE W 5K I8 1,762 2,187
Amount due from a JE UL R 2 BT /&8 & B) 3R
fellow subsidiary 14 11 -
Securities linked deposits FHH BT R 15 6,019 -
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRA S 31,920 2,122
45,437 9,067
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables ENESER 16 767 100
Accruals and other payables FEETE R & E fth & 5K IR 1,842 1,484
Obligations under a finance lease & & & & #E
— due within one year — —F R H 17 22 22
Tax payable FES B IE 1,146 873
3,777 2,479
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 41,660 6,588
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HMEERABEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,693 11,079

CER-EFRMEEE



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
REEERER

At30 April2003 M-ET=FMA=+H&KE

2003 2002
—EEB=HF —EEF
Notes Us$’000 Us$'000
Btax FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Obligations under a finance lease &t & & & &

— due after one year — —F1& FI B 17 6 28
Post-employment benefits 1E B R IK1E A 26 1,018 1,035
Deferred taxation i IE 718 18 18 30

1,042 1,093

NET ASSETS EEFE 45,651 9,986
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR R %

Share capital & 7 19 12,948 40

Reserves it 1% 20 32,703 9,946

45,651 9,986

The financial statements on pages 58 to 111 were FEE8EIIIEMBHZUBRELETS R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ZTZ=F+A-+=H#ZENRERZE -
Directors on 23 July 2003 and are signed on its behalf WA T EZEEFREREE :

by:

WANG Lu Yen Steven Julien FENIGER
IwE PR
Director Director

BFE BF
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Consolidated Statements of Recognised Gains and Losses
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

2003 2002
—EB=F —ERE-F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FETT T
Exchange differences arising AR ERAERRE
from translation of financial BINETS 2 B HRES
statements of the overseas MEERNER R
operations not recognised
in the income statements (22) (332)
Profit for the year FE % 12,328 8,342
Total recognised gains for the year FE D ER W R B 5 12,306 8,010

ERE=FER MEEE



Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
| SFEHERER

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE _—_ZTZT=_FNB =+ HILFE

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FZET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B
Profit from operations £ & 12,714 8,568
Adjustments for: BERTHZBELFE
Interest income F 2 A (1,237) (55)
Depreciation e 761 526
Loss on disposal of machinery HEMSERREREE
and equipment 18 10
Operating cash flows before LEEeEHAIZ
movements in working capital KERERE 12,256 9,049
(Increase) decrease in FEUWE 5 BR 5% (38 00) I
trade receivables (967) 3,366
Decrease (increase) in FERFIE ZE2R
prepayments, deposits H At JE B FRIE R A (38 0)
and other receivables 425 (b46)
Increase (decrease) in JERTE 5 BRI i ORt )
trade payables 667 (360)
Increase (decrease) in accruals FEETE R K B fth JE
and other payables FRIEE CRt4) 358 (612)
(Decrease) increase in EBRIK
post-employment benefits & #) Ok ) 12 hn (17) 111
Cash generated from operations & E KBRS 12,722 11,008
Interest on obligations under BERERENR
a finance lease (2) (2)
Overseas tax paid B8N IR (131) (468)
Overseas tax refunded BREGIINGIE - 23
NET CASH FROM OPERATING K& XKEFMEBEELFHE
ACTIVITIES 12,589 10,561
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of machinery and BEMSEREE
equipment (1,352) (970)
Purchase of securities BEEHFEHBER
linked deposits (6,019) -
(Advance to) repayment from (BRT)EFERZR
fellow subsidiaries B /B A (11) 3,523
Interest received B F B 1,237 55
Proceeds from disposal of HEKES R E TS RIE
machinery and equipment 59 6
Expenditure on agency rights RIEBERX - (3,014)
Repayment from immediate EREBEEEZERAA
holding company - 1,957
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RETE (i) i
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HeREE (6,086) 1,557
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
RERETRER

For the year ended 30 April 2003 EE—_ZZT=FWUA=1+HIFE

2003 2002
—BE=F —EEF
Us$’'000 Us$000
FEx FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Net proceeds from issue of BITHRM TS RIBFRE
new shares 27,841 -
Dividends paid AR E (4,482) (10,800)
Repayment of obligations under  BIEHERIEER
a finance lease (22) (17)
Repayment to a fellow subsidiary & FEZK B QA - (182)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) 7l & T B T 18 (P #E)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFH 23,337 (10,999)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND B&KkBE£Z%ZEEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS B hn F K 29,840 1,119
CASH AND CASH FYzBEERREE
EQUIVALENTS AT Z(EEE
BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 2,122 1,319
Effect of foreign exchange EXEFHTE
rate changes (42) (316)
CASH AND CASH FRZ2EESRES
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF £EER
THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances HIRTTAEEERSRE
and cash 31,920 2,122

CETSHEFR MELE



Notes to the Financial Statements
| Bt %5 4R & P 5

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda on 25 January
2002. It became the holding company of the Group
on 22 April 2002 as a result of the group
reorganisation (“Group Reorganisation”) for the
purpose of the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

The directors consider that the ultimate holding
company is Roly International Holdings Ltd. (“Roly
International”), a company incorporated in Bermuda
and listed on the Main Board of the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
described in Note 28.

The Group Reorganisation on 22 April 2002 is
regarded as a restructure among enterprises under
common control. Accordingly, the financial
statements of the Group have been prepared as if
the Company had always been the holding company
of the Group from the beginning of the earliest period

presented, using the pooling of interests method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS").

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
certain financial instruments. The principal

accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and enterprises
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made
up to 30 April each year. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an investee enterprise so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the
relevant subsidiaries are measured at their fair values
at the date of acquisition. The interest of minority
shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of

the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used in line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All significant intercompany transactions and
balances between group enterprises are eliminated

on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| B 7% 3R & B 5

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Sales of merchandise are recognised when goods

are delivered and title has passed.

Commission income is recognised upon shipment of
the underlying goods procured by the Group.

Reimbursement income from customers is recognised
when expenses paid on behalf of customers are

incurred.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance
from properties under operating leases, is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the respective lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the principal outstanding

and the effective interest rate applicable.

Service income and consultancy service fee income

are recognised when services are rendered.

Machinery and equipment

Machinery and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its present working condition

and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Machinery and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
machinery and equipment over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method at the following

rates per annum:

20% (or over the

unexpired lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter)
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment 20% to 33%%

Motor vehicles 20%

Club membership
Club membership is stated at cost less any
recognised to

impairment loss reflect any

irrecoverable amount.

Deferred expenditure

Material items of expenditure that do not relate solely
to revenue which has already been accounted for
are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable
out of future revenue, and will contribute to the future

earning capacity of the Group.

Deferred expenditure is amortised over the period in
which the related benefits are expected to be
realised. Deferred expenditure is reviewed annually
to determine the amount, if any, that is no longer
recoverable and any such amount is written off to

the income statement in the year of determination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| B 7% 3R & B 5

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 2. TEEFHBE &

The Group as lessee rEBHEREBEA

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the fish 7840 6 7 B 1 2 KB 5 R bg & B ¥
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks HETHEBEA ABERREREE

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair values at the date of
acquisition or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly against

income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to income statement on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease.

Taxation

The charge for current tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items which are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method in respect of temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction which

affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except
when it relates to items credited or charged directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its

current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| B 7% 3R & B 5

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
The retirement benefit costs charged to the income
statement represent the contributions payable in
respect of the year to the Group’s defined

contribution scheme.

Other post-employment benefits

For other post-employment benefits, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date. Past service
cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the amended benefits become vested.
The obligation recognised in the balance sheet
represents the present value of the other post-
employment employee benefits as adjusted for
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and

unrecognised past service cost.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are dealt

with in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s overseas operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the year in which the

operation is disposed of.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an

expense immediately.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when the Group
has become a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value,
as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated

irrecoverable amounts.

Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at their nominal value.

Securities linked deposits
Securities linked deposits are recorded at cost and

stated at carrying value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event which
it is probable will result in an outflow of economic

benefits that can be reasonably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 ¥R 5 M A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Turnover 3. EXH
Turnover represents proceeds received and EEEREAEERAFAZE W R IE
receivable from commission income, sales of WHSKA MEFHEHEENRASEZ
merchandise by the Group to customers and service HARRBEEA - ST
income during the year, and is analysed as follows:
2003 2002
—BB=F —ETF
Us$’000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Commission income Ba A 32,518 29,135
Sales of merchandise EERE:ES
— sourcing and procurement  — & 839 513
— design and development — Rt R 7,754 -
8,593 513
Service income Al 7 W A 3,183 -
44,294 29,648
Other Operating Income 4. HM&&E WA
2003 2002
—BBC=F —EET_F
Us$’000 USs$’000
FExn FET
Interest income B U A 1,237 55
Reimbursement income RERP ZER/EKA
from customers 206 721
Consultancy service fee AR TS B U A
income - 75
Others HAn 314 363
1,757 1,214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| B 7% 3R & B 5

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

5. Segmental Information 5. 2 B&EH
For management purposes, the Group is currently MEBEEMS  AEEXBIHEN
organised into two operating activities — services RMEEEXEE - RERBEREmHE
rendered and sales of merchandise. These divisions E - UEXBALAEEZIETED
are the basis on which the Group reports its primary HER CER -

segment information.

Principal activities are as follows: FEEBHOT

Services rendered — commission income derived RHERE — RERBREBEERZMA
from the procurement agency WA KRB BERS
business and service income Z REW A

derived from value-added

services

Sales of merchandise - trading of garment and HMmEE — KREREHES
labels
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 EE—_ZZT=FWUA=1+HIFE

5. Segmental Information (continued) 5. 2EEN (#)
Segmental information about these businesses is ERALEXEB 2 HOBEERDT -
presented below.
By principal activities REEXEK

For the year ended 30 April 2003
BE-ZZ=FNA=THLEE

Sales of Services
merchandise rendered Total
EmEE RH R &5t
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FETT FETT FETT
REVENUE W =
External revenue G PR U 8,593 35,701 44,294
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEEE 409 11,389 11,798
Unallocated corporate Ao ERE
expenses (321)
Interest income B WA 1,237
Finance costs B % & B (2)
Profit before taxation BR A% A 7 12,712
Taxation Ia (384)
Profit for the year F[E 5 F 12,328
OTHER INFORMATION HibE R
Additions to machinery HERERERE
and equipment 19 1,333 1,352
Depreciation of machinery M RREITE
and equipment 9 752 761
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES R=-"ZTE=fF
AT 30 April 2003 mMA=+H
ZEEREE
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 971 16,814 17,785
Unallocated corporate assets KO B DEEE 32,685
Consolidated total assets REBEERE 50,470
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities NEEaE 825 2,801 3,626
Unallocated corporate liabilities kOB E A G 47
Tax payable FE IR 1,146
Consolidated total liabilities  4FAABEAHE 4,819

CER=FERMELE
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| Bt 75 3R &5 M R

For the year ended 30 April 2003

BE—ZT=FNA=+ALEE

5. Segmental Information (continued)

By principal activities (continued)

BITEEH% (&)

For the year ended 30 April 2002

(E_EE_FNMA=-F+AHLFE
Sales of Services
merchandise rendered Total
s R &5
Us$'000 US$’000 US$’000
FETT FETT FETT
REVENUE U 2=
External revenue G PR UL 513 29,135 29,648
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEE 41 8,472 8,513
Interest income M BE WA 55
Finance costs B % & A (2)
Gain on dissolution of % B BT /B 2 B &

a subsidiary 37
Profit before taxation B 5% B v 8,603
Taxation 18 (261)
Profit for the year F[E % 8,342
OTHER INFORMATION H &R
Additions to machinery BERRERE

and equipment - 1,037 1,037
Depreciation of machinery e REETE

and equipment - 526 526
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES R=-"ZTE=fF

AT 30 APRIL 2002 mMA=4+H

ZEEREE
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE - 13,113 13,113
Unallocated corporate assets ®OEGEEE 445
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 13,558
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities NEEaE 100 2,519 2,619
Unallocated corporate Kot Fkatd

liabilities 80
Tax payable FES B8 873
Consolidated total liabilities  4FA ABEAE 3,572
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 ¥R 5 M A

For the year ended 30 April 2003

Segmental Information (continued)

By geographical segments

The following table provides an analysis of the

TRER B
2 it 18 5

HE_ZTT=FNA=1TRHILFE

TRAXNKEHEERREF A

Group’s sales by geographical location of customers: 2o
2003 2002
—EBBC=F —EET_F
Us$’ooo Us$'000
FETT FET
United States EHE 17,182 8,378
Canada mex 14,606 11,089
Europe B M 2,784 2,089
Hong Kong BB 3,244 2,511
Others H 6,478 5,581
44,294 29,648

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets, and additions to machinery and
equipment, analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

NI RREEMGENREINDBEE
FREEAKSERRERE 2D

2003 2002
— —EE-F
Us$’000 USs$’000
FErn FET
Carrying amount of NEEEREAE
segment assets
Hong Kong &% 47,203 10,034
Taiwan a& 493 487
Others H 2,774 3,037
50,470 13,558
Additions to machinery HWREREERE
and equipment
Hong Kong BB 1,098 456
Taiwan =0 32 36
Others Hith 222 545
1,352 1,037

SRRSEER HELE
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

Profit from Operations & n A
2003 2002
—BRR=F —EE-F
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FETT
Profit from operations RN E R T
has been arrived &8
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration BEEWNe (WaE7)
(Note 7) 1,833 937
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR A
(excluding directors) (TREES) 14,414 11,251
Post-employment benefits 1B B iR K48 F Bl A
costs (excluding directors) (THEEES) 636 583
Total staff costs (Note) BB TRA (MEE) 16,883 12,771
Auditors’ remuneration % ERM B & 123 67
Depreciation e
— owned assets —-BEBEEE 748 520
— assets under a finance -RMEHEEE
lease 13 6
Loss on disposal of machinery H & # 25 & R #EE 8
and equipment 18 10
Operating lease rentals KEHEMES -
in respect of:
— office premises and - BFBEMR
staff quarters BETRES 1,417 1,568
— furniture, fixtures and —RXM - EER
equipment B 67 50
Net exchange losses EHEEFRE 61 -
Allowance for doubtful debts R BE & 220 176
Provision for claims RERE 272 349
and after crediting: WEtA -
Net exchange gains JE 5 E T R - 147
Note: Bt -
Number of employees BB A 709 639
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %% R & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

7. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments EEREEMS
Directors’ remuneration: EEML
2003 2002
—EE=HF —EEF
Us$’000 US$’000
FETT FEIT
Fees: e
Executive directors WITES - -
Independent non-executive B IEHITEE
directors 69 -
69 -
Other emoluments HEMe (1TES) ¢
(executive directors):
Salaries and allowances N K2 = Bh 1,389 886
Post-employment 1B B R IKE A A A
benefit costs 40 25
Bonus TE4 335 26
1,764 937
1,833 937

SEBSEER HELEE
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

7. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 7.
(continued)
The emoluments of the directors were within the
following bands:

EEREEME &)

BESEZMENTFATHE -

2003 2002

—EB=F —ETE-F

Number of Number of

directors directors

EEAY EEAH

Nil to US$100,000 Z % 100,000 7T 3 3
US$100,001 to US$200,000 100,0012 T & 200,000% 7T 1 1
US$200,001 to US$300,000 200,001 Tt & 300,000 7T 1 3
US$300,001 to US$400,000 300,001 T &= 400,000 T 2 -
US$800,001 to US$900,000 800,001 jT & 900,000 T 1 -
8 7

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2002: three) were directors of

i

AEERAEEFHEES =R (=

TE_F: ZR)RARAES - H

the Company whose emoluments are included in the SEORETHE HAME (—2T—
disclosure above. The emoluments of the remaining E WL EETHAMT :
two (2002: two) individuals were as follows:
2003 2002
—EB=F —FFC-
Us$’ooo Us$'000
FETT FET
Salaries and other benefits B % H At 48 7 530 400
Post-employment benefit 12 8 iR R & I A A
costs 18 17
Bonus 4T 17 16
565 433
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HMe N FUATEHE -
US$100,001 to US$200,000 100,001 Jt = 200,000% 7T - 1
US$200,001 to US$300,000 200,001 Jjt = 300,000% 7T 1
US$300,001 to US$400,000 300,001 jT = 400,000 7T -
2 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Taxation BIE
2003 2002
—BB=F —ETC
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FZET
The charge comprises: HIEBE
Hong Kong profits tax BAEFEH
— current year —ARFE 33 -
Income tax in other Hb e AR TSN
jurisdictions
— current year —ARFE 357 287
— under(over) provision in - BAFEREETR
prior years (EBER B #) 6 (24)
Deferred taxation (Note 18) EEFIE (Kf:£18) (12) (2)
384 261

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16 per cent.
(2002: 16 per cent.) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated

at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

EAFEBRIBEAEEZ G ERBE
AIERRI6%(ZTEE-F : 16%) 51

= o
o

fE Rt FDE IR B A 2 BB T S A
EBE U HEHE -
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

m 8. Taxation (continued) BMIE ()
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the AN 5F JE B T8 AT EE BR A AT A M) ¥ BR A
profit before taxation as follows: ™~
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET_F
Us$’o000 Us$’000
FETT FET
Profit before taxation B 5% B v 12,712 8,603
Tax at the domestic income R AR5 &R 16%
tax rate of 16% FFE 2 IR 2,033 1,376
Tax effect of expenses that BT E e R B B
is not deductible in T
determining taxable profit Py 3 1 1
Tax effect of income that is &1 & & 3% % 7 55
not taxable in determining BAZRHRKA
taxable profit 2R (3,270) (2,038)
Unrecognised income tax HETEBERAEE
losses relating to losses B M ARER
of certain group companies  ZFi3 T E#E 1,242 688
Effect of different tax rates EHAMRDERRKLE
of subsidiaries pa = VNEIRNE
operating in other MEZEE
jurisdictions 378 234
Tax expense for the year FEMBERX 384 261
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

Dividends

During the year ended 30 April 2003, an interim
dividend of 2.4 HK cents per share was paid to the
shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 30 April 2002, interim and
special dividends were paid by a subsidiary to its

then shareholder prior to the Group Reorganisation.

g
BE_TT-FNA=THLEFED
A R R A R R A & B 2.478 1l 2 o
BB o

BE_TT_FNUA=tTHILFE
AT H B~ B = B S 4R Al A B R
Z BRI A A B R R R AR e

2003 2002
—BBC=F —ET-
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FETT FETT
The Company VNN
Interim, paid BT AR B 1,992 -
Final, proposed ¥R R B IR B 2,928 2,490
4,920 2,490
Linmark Westman Linmark Westman
Investments Limited Investments Limited
Interim, paid B HRE - 3,800
First special, paid BENE—XRERRE - 3,500
Second special, paid BENEZRERRE - 3,500
- 10,800
4,920 13,290

A final dividend of 3.5 HK cents (2002: 3.0 HK cents)
per share has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EZSCEARBERARSEBIILE
IW(ZZTZF : 3.0l - HEAELH
RN B RBERE L E -
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 & & —

TE-FWMASt+BILEE

10. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for
the year ended 30 April 2003 is based on the profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately
US$12,328,000 (2002: US$8,342,000) and on the
weighted average number of approximately
643,340,000 shares in issue during the year (2002:
499,200,000 shares in issue and issuable comprising
2,000,000 shares in issue as at 30 April 2002 and
497,200,000 shares issued pursuant to the

capitalisation issue as referred to in Note 19).

The calculation of the dilutive earnings per share for
the year ended 30 April 2003 is based on the profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately
US$12,328,000 and on the weighted average number
of approximately 645,087,000 shares issued and
issuable, calculated on the assumption that the
Company’s outstanding share options would have

been exercised.

No disclosure of the diluted earnings per share for
2002 was shown as there were no potentially dilutive

shares in issue.
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

11. Machinery and Equipment 1M HBBERERE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
MEEE KERRE "E &t
Us$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
COST R AR
At 1 May 2002 R-ET—fF
A H—H 865 2,881 313 4,059
Exchange realignment TE SRR 6 54 14 74
Additions NE 192 1,096 64 1,352
Disposals & (102) (307) (52) (461)
At 30 April 2003 R-BEB=fF
B=+H 961 3,724 339 5,024
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 May 2002 R-TE—
A H—H 719 1,822 160 2,701
Exchange realignment TE N SR 5 34 7 46
Provided for the year FREAE 96 615 50 761
Eliminated on disposals i 5 B i 85 (101) (243) (40) (384)
At 30 April 2003 R-BEB=fF
mMA=+H 719 2,228 177 3,124
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 30 April 2003 R-BZ=
A=+H 242 1,496 162 1,900
At 30 April 2002 Ro-TT—fF
mA=+H 146 1,059 153 1,358

12.

The net book value of machinery and equipment of
the Group include an amount of US$46,834 (2002:
US$60,215) in respect of assets held under a finance
lease.

Deferred Expenditure

It represents expenditure incurred for the extension
of a period of three years of the right to act as the
exclusive buying agent of a customer from 2006 to
2009. The asset will be amortised over that period

of extension of three years, commencing from 2006.

12.

RNEFRENBEZFETFEBSRER
MEMEHE 2 EEHEL6,834ETT
(ZEBEZ 4 : 60,2156%7T) °

EER R
EREBERARE-REFPMELCHBER
REREEN=F (B _TTRFE_
ERNF)AXHEZER - BERKH—
EERNFEREN I =FHIH -
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 &

13.

14.

15.

E_EZ=FMOB=+HILFE

Trade Receivahles 13. EWE % RN
The credit terms granted to customers range from BETEPZEEHHRE0RKZEZIOXRT
60 to 90 days. The aged analysis of trade receivables Lo RINEFGERZERITAT ¢
is as follows:
2003 2002
—®®=F  -TT o4
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FETT
0 - 30 days 0— 30Xk 3,713 2,873
31 - 60 days 31— 60X 1,625 1,356
61 — 90 days 61— 90Kk 204 319
Over 90 days 90K 891 1,025
6,433 5,573
Less: Allowance for i REREEE
doubtful debts (708) (815)
5,725 4,758
Amount Due from a Fellow Subsidiary 14 BRRBEZAKNE A RRE
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and ZEFBVEER  RELREETEE
has no fixed term of repayment. EHEIR o
Securities Linked Deposits 15. B 5B BT

The amount represents deposits which will be
converted into designated listed shares in Hong Kong
at the maturity dates of the deposits if the closing
prices of these designated shares fall below the pre-
determined prices at those dates. If the closing prices
of these designated shares are higher than the pre-
determined prices at maturity, the Group will receive
cash with pre-agreed interest amount.

On 30 April 2003 and up to the date of the report,
the closing prices of these shares were higher than

the pre-determined prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 ¥R 5 M A

16. Trade Payables

The aged analysis of trade payables is as follows:

17.

For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

16. B B 5 &K
FERESRAZBRANMT -

2003 2002

—EBBC=F —EE-
Us$’ooo Us$'000
FEx FET
0 - 30 days 0— 30Xk 462 -
31 - 60 days 31— 60X 59 -
61 — 90 days 61— 90X 22 -
Over 90 days 90K M E 224 100
767 100

Obligations Under a Finance Lease

17 REHERE

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEREEMN BERHEENREE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EB=F —_TE_F ZBB=F _TET_-F
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FErx FET FEx FET
Amounts payable under EREMRE
a finance lease: FETFRIE -
Within one year —F A 24 24 22 22
More than one year but —FREMFR
not exceeding two years 6 24 6 22
More than two years but MERBERFNA
not exceeding five years - 6 - 6
30 54 28 50
Less: Future finance charges & : 7k 2K 81 %
EA (2) (4) - -
Present value of lease HEAERE
obligations 28 50 28 50
Analysed as: DWW
Amounts due within one P RRE A&
year shown under —F RN E H
current liabilities 2 RIB 22 22
Amounts due after one year —F &2 H 2 K\ 6 28
28 50
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

17.

18.

Obligations Under a Finance Lease 17 MEHEAE (&)
(continued)
It is the Group’s policy to lease its motor vehicle AEEBXRAERMEHEEMEAANR
under a finance lease. The lease term is 3 years. B HBAE-F REE-_ZTT=-F
For the year ended 30 April 2003, the average MA=FTHISE  EBREEEXT
effective borrowing rate was 8% per annum. Interest HRFE8E - BERTINEIMLA#HE
rates are fixed at the contract date. Lease is on a EE MHENUNTHEHEHENRREE
fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have W BEEIXAB ST RTLEMEL
been entered into for contingent rental payments. B o
The Group's obligations under a finance lease are REB CHEHREAETDHBEAR
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. HEEECIRBELRR -
Deferred Taxation 18. i % Bi 18
2003 2002
—EE=F T4
Uss$’000 Us$’000
FET FETT
At beginning of the year RE ] 30 32
Credit for the year (Note 8) AFEEE (K :#8) (12) (2)
At end of the year RER 18 30
Deferred taxation represents the tax effect of BEERIBE#ERERE 2 RAEBR

temporary differences attributable to the excess of
the carrying amount of machinery and equipment

over its tax base as a deduction for tax purpose.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has unused
tax losses of US$13,160,000 (2002: US$7,100,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in the financial
statements due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.
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19. Share Capital 19. R &
Number
of shares Amount
BHHE 2
Us$’000
FEITT
Authorised: VETE ¢
At 1 May 2002 and RN-_ZEE-_FRHRA—H
30 April 2003 2L =F
mA=+H 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITRER
At 1 May 2002 RZEE-_FHA—H 2,000,000 40
Allotted and issued 2Bl KT 148,200,000 2,964
Issue of shares by i 1% 19 ' (B Bk & A 1b
capitalisation of the share i & 17X 9
premium account 497,200,000 9,944
At 30 April 2003 R-EZE=FWA=*+H 647,400,000 12,948

On 8 May 2002, the Company issued 124,800,000
shares of US$0.02 each at HK$1.68 per share to

the public and, through a placement, to certain

investors.

Immediately after the above-mentioned new issue
and placement, an amount of US$9,944,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account

of the Company was capitalised for the issuance of
497,200,000 shares of US$0.02 each of the
Company to RGS Holdings Limited, being the sole
shareholder of the Company as at 22 April 2002.

R-ZFEZ_FHANEB  AREINE
R1.68ETRAARALR GEBEE)
M5 T % & & 817 124,800,000/ &
MR EE0.02%& T 2 Ik 7 ©

EE LM BEHRREEER - AAF
5 H AR 7 4 B BR ¥ 29,944,000 7T
&AL - LAEE17497,200,0008% A A
AT REEO0.02%& T 2 &/ FRGS
Holdings Limited (A ARIR ZE T =
FUAZT—HERZIE—RE) -

—EE-EER NEEF
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19. Share Capital (continued)

On 27 May 2002, 23,400,000 shares of US$0.02
each of the Company were issued at HK$1.68 per
share to certain investors pursuant to the exercise of
the over-allotment option granted to the underwriters
in relation to the above-mentioned placement in full
by DBS Asia Capital Limited on behalf of the
underwriters.

All the shares which were issued during the year
under review rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects save for the participation in

the capitalisation issue referred to above.
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RZZEE_FRA_-_++A8 " AQ7F
BEFMEZERINBEBERQ AR
XEHAEBITEREARE LREE
mER 2 BEEKRE  EHEIR1.688
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20. Reserves 20. f# 18
Share Special Translation  Dividend  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ROEE %AEE  ENRBE  RERE 2BEN CH
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000  US$000
TE7 T#7x T#7x S TEr  FEx
At 1 May 2001 RZEZ-48A-H 2 222 127 - 12,447 12,798
Special reserve arisingon  EEEAELYZ
the group restructuring BRI (2) (38) - - - (40)
Exchange differences FREBINES
arising from translation BRREMEL
of financial statements LERER
of overseas operations - - (332) - - (332)
Exchange reserve realised ~ EHIBARMESR
upon dissolution of LELRE
a subsidiary - - (22) - - (22)
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - 8,342 8,342
Dividends &8 - - - - (10,800)  (10,800)
Proposed final dividend BRRERE - - - 2,490 (2,490) -
At 30 April 2002 RZZFTF
mA=TH - 184 (227) 2,490 7,499 9,946
Premium arising on issue  EfTRDEL
of shares ZifE 28,956 - - - - 2895
Capitalisation issue of ERMcEIRD
shares (9,944) - - - - (9,944)
Expenses incurred in BREORNA
connection with the EEZRAX
issue of shares (4,079) - - - - (4,079)
Exchange differences FHREENER
arising from translation HBAEMnE
of financial statements LERES
of overseas operations - - (22) - - (22)
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - 12328 12,328
Dividend paid ERRE - - - (2,490) - (2,490)
Interim dividend R S - - - - (1,992)  (1,992)
Proposed final dividend BRRERE - - - 2,928 (2,928) -
At 30 April 2003 RZEZ=%
mA=+A 14,933 184 (249) 2,928 14,907 32,703

—ERE=EEE HEEE
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20. Reserves (continued)
The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of share capital of the Company
issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value
of share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the

Company through an exchange of shares.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to shareholders at
30 April 2003 consisted of contributed surplus,
accumulated profits and dividend reserve totalling
US$14,348,000 (2002: US$9,938,000).

21. Operating Lease Commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of land and buildings which fall due as

follows:

20.

21.

il ()

BRHBEAAADETRATER
AR F AR AR5 75 2 M 2 % R
BLARZRABREREME ZEH -

EXZgRR ARAR-_TZE=FNH
A=1tHAHDRTRR 2 FEHER
ERAG  RiaMkRERFEE &
KE#) /14,348,000 L (=2 F
£ : 9,938,000 7T) °

ReRERE

REHE  AEERBELIERETY
TEHEEEEEMARU T FBA
A I

2003 2002
i —EE-

Us$’000 Us$’000

FEx FZET

Within one year —F R 1,070 1,235
In the second to fifth year F_EERFR

inclusive (BREERMF) 515 915

1,585 2,150
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for a term of five years and rentals are fixed for a
term of five years.

21. Operating Lease Commitments (continued) 1. REBEARE ©)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding REER  XEBERBERM  EER
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases BELAHELELEHEMARATF
in respect of furniture, fixtures and equipment which A SE AT
fall due as follows:
2003 2002
—EER=F —TEE_F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —F A 87 44
In the second to fifth year FIEERFA
inclusive (BREEEMS) 158 65
245 109
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable KEHENFEAESEREETET
by the Group for certain of its office premises, staff BEMREIBEEHEM HBERRK
quarters and furniture, fixtures and equipment. HEEINzH:  THEEF2HAE
Leases in respect of land and buildings are negotiated AOEHEEMmERE - He M Fs
for an average term of two years and rentals are MFETE - G  RERKEZHE
fixed for an average of two years. Leases in respect BN RAFENZE B2 TARFE
of furniture, fixtures and equipment are negotiated JE °

SRRSEERHELE
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22.

23.

Capital Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at

the balance sheet date:

22. BEAREKIE

NI RASERNEER 2 EAKE :

2003 2002
—EE=F —ET_F
Us$’000 Us$’000
FETT FE7T
Commitments for the EEWESE R AE
acquisition of machinery
and equipment
- contracted for but not — BEIAERE
provided in the financial IS E NG
statements 151 104
— authorised but not — BRAEERETLD
contracted for 26 13
177 117

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash,
trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from a fellow subsidiary,
trade payables, accruals and other payables and tax
payable approximate their fair values because of the
nature and the short-term maturity of these

instruments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk and exposure
to the effects of future changes in the prevailing

level of interest rates are not significant.

Financial instruments denominated in foreign
currencies, where applicable, have been translated
as the market exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. The Group has not entered into
any foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against foreign exchange fluctuations of the financial

instruments.
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24. Related Party Transactions

24 EHEALRS

Identity of related parties Notes Nature of transactions 2003 2002
BREATSH M XBZHE —BEB=F —ETF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FETT
Subsidiaries of Roly International (1) Commission income 3 64
2EER 2B R A BelA
(i)  Administrative charge 57 582 E
THRER
(iii)  Sales of merchandise 21 -
B miHE
Turmar Limited (iv)  Rental expense 131 33

EEARRAA

Subsidiaries of Roly International are the fellow

subsidiaries of the Company.

Turmar Limited is a company owned by Mr. WANG

Lu Yen, a director of the Company, and his spouse.

Notes:

HE X

PEERZHMBARGRARRZR

EMBAR -

(i)  Commission income was based on a percentage of (i)

the shipment amount.

(i) Administrative charge represented reimbursements to (ii)

a fellow subsidiary.

(iii) Sales were based on cost plus a percentage of profit (iii)
mark-up.
(iv) Rental expense was determined based on market rate (iv)

and floor area.

BEARAAA—HAEEBELE (K
RAEF)REEFHBEZAT -

ff i

BEBANBEREZBDLFE -

THERRMRFZHNBAREN B
A -

HERRAMEREGMNBOLLAE -

HeRxRhEESREOEEE

E °
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24. Related Party Transactions (continued)

25.

Pursuant to an assignment agreement dated 1
February 2002, Linmark Westman International Ltd.
assigned to the Group all its rights and liabilities in
respect of a buying agency arrangement between a
customer and Linmark Westman International Ltd.,
made among themselves when Linmark Westman
International Ltd. was a former holding company of

the Group’s subsidiaries, at nil consideration.

The directors have represented that the above
transactions are based on the terms agreed by both

parties and in the ordinary course of business.

Defined Contribution Employee Benefits
During the year, the Group maintained various
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for
its employees, which are managed by independent
trustees. Employees’ and employer’s contributions
are based on various percentages of employees’ gross
salaries and length of service. The total cost of
contributions payable to the defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes were US$40,000 (2002:
US$25,000) and US$307,000 (2002:US$358,000)

attributable to directors and employees respectively.
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EREALTRS (8)
BER-_ZZT-_F-_A—AFIIZ
W&
International Ltd. LA (& R B & E R A
%?%$ERW% Al AIPE R 2 A
B REPAIVZERBEBRIELEZ
ih‘ﬁ%ﬂ RETHEHETASHE -

Linmark Westman

BEEgRBA LUARFHEATER

RIE T RTE ZIRRETIL -

25. E B AT E B RIKE R GHE

RAFR  AEERERERIZA
ERMBRRENEE - BB RE
ABRE - BEEMEBEXZHFREEH
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26. Post-Employment Benefits

The provision for post-employment benefits and

movements during the year are analysed as follows:

26.

2003

-g%=fF
Taiwan Others

=) |

US$’000 US$’000
FEx  FERm

Hit

Note (a)  Note (b)
K&t (a) K&t (b)

&
&
=

SR KEF
BRANENEBERFANEE DTN
2002
—ZETCF
Total Taiwan Others Total
Y B

US$’000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000
FErn TERT  TET TER

Note (a) ~ Note (b)
fitzta)  Hiatb)

At 1 May RAEA—A 742 293 1,035 687 237 924
Exchange differences ERER (7) 4 (3) (35) (6) (41)
Amounts charged to N el

income statement ZEE 167 162 329 128 97 225
Payments during the year & R {f 3k (147) (196) (343) (38) (35) (73)
At 30 April REA=+AH 755 263 1,018 742 293 1,035
Notes: BaE -
(a) As required by the local law in Taiwan, the Group (a) IREBEEEEHWEGMTE  AEEIXE

makes payments for post-employment benefits based
on various percentages of employees’ gross salaries.
After serving a qualifying period, all employees are
entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death.
Long-term employee benefits are provided based on
years of services and final average salary. The Group
is under a legal obligation to meet payments due to
employees. The Group carried out its latest actuarial
valuation of the obligation for long-term employee
benefits to employees in Taiwan in April 2003.

BFMaE s TRBA DL N RBIR
‘A - ERENRE BRI ERH
% HEREERK BRAFHEHZR
BREN REEERMZRBEFER
REFHFHER - AEEFEEER
EXNENTRE ZFIAER - BEHET
RZER - AEER-_ZZE=FMH
RBEREZRAEERNETET
BRE—RZBEEME -

“ER=FEHMELE
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26. Post-Employment Benefits (continued)
Notes: (continued)

The amount recognised in the income statement in

260 EERKERN (&)
HiaE o (48)

HRAEAENRERTERZSED

respect of the Taiwanese scheme is analysed as MR
follows:

2003 2002
—EE=HF —EEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FErx FET
Service cost PR 75 P AN 133 102
Interest cost F Bk A 34 26
167 128

The charge for the year has been included in staff
costs.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of the post-employment benefits due under

FARXENABIKRANR -

BLARIR & BT Bl 2 B BRIKAR A
REERBEXRTRIZEES TN

the Taiwanese scheme is analysed as follows: ™~
2003 2002
—EE=HF —ETF
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Present value of obligations JE&F4A &% 731 742
Unrecognised actuarial gains R23:E K& 24 -
755 742
Key assumptions used: EEEM
2003 2002
—EE=HF —ETF
Discount rate IR = 4% 4.5%
Expected rate of salary A=
increase 3% 3%
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26. Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Under local regulations in South Korea, Pakistan, Sri
Lanka and Bangladesh, the employees are entitled to
an amount based on their existing salaries and years
of services on retirement, disability or death.
Accordingly, the Group made retirement provision for
employees for US$263,000 (2002: US$293,000),
based on the employees’ monthly salaries and the
percentage of vesting benefit by reference to the years
of services of the employees. The amount charged to
income statement was US$162,000 (2002:
US$97,000).

27. Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company or a committee thereof
may grant options to eligible persons (Note) to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
specifically excludes Mr. WANG Lu Yen from
participating in the Scheme so long as he remains
as a substantial shareholder (as such term is
construed in accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”)) of the Company.

Note:
The eligible persons under the Scheme include:

(i) any director or proposed director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive director), employee or proposed employee
(whether full time or part time) of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company
or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of the Company; or

26.

27.

HE_ZTT=FNA=1TRHILFE

EERKERN &)
Hiat o (48)

(b) RiEmE EEHE HEHFEE
MR EHED - BREERBRENR - K
ETERNRGREZTE —ERAE
FMkRBEEAEZEHE - Bt
FEBRREEAFRZ2EZERERBF
AEZRBEANBEALEFHERSR
R4 F % # 263,000 L (ZE2ZF =
F 1 293,000%7T) ° st AREKRF 2
TR A162,000% T (ZET 4 :
97,000% 7T) °

i s

RRA 2 B & ([ZETE) IR
BERZE—BRENR-_ZTZT_FHA
“HZARERM XEZEMAE
BRATHASEEEL B GIELZ
BERGE THRESRE KD K - VIBZET
Z ARREEENEZTZEGAH
BRERTEERAL (B i) ARE
RATRD - RERARAFEERRE
(B FTEH LR A ([ EMmRAD
BRAAZ ER) 2HM - THRE%
EEESEZETE -

Wit
HHBTZAERALERE

(i) ANEBEEMKERBRARBEMEZE
RERER S A B R A AR R ) 2 (A
AR ZEFNESTRIREES (TR B
WITHRATTES - BREMBILIE
WITES)  REIHEER (TH2
BERE) =X
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27. Share Options (continued) 27. B E ()

Note: (continued)

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of the Company; or

(iii) any business partner, agent, consultant,
representative, supplier of goods or services or
customer of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made,
upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be
exercised at any time commencing on the date as
the board may determine and ending on such date
as the board may determine but shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant and
the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of

grant.

Subject to the earlier termination of the Scheme in
accordance with the rules governing the Scheme,
the Scheme will expire on 22 April 2012.
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27. Share Options (continued) 27. B E ()
Details of the share options to subscribe for the REE_ZEZE=FHUA=-+THLFE
shares of the Company granted to the employees of RIRZET 8% T AR & B & 2 B B b
the Group and the subsidiaries of Roly International BRAEE (BEARAES) IRE
(including directors of the Company) under the KAa kD 2 BIRESHINNT

Scheme during the year ended 30 April 2003 are

shown as follows:

Number of underlying shares of the Company

MAZEAARRGHE

Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercise
during during during price Exercise
Date of grant the year the year the year 30 April 2003  per share period

HK$

R=-BE=F

MA=+H BR
FHAH FREUH FRTHE FRERMU i RATEE TEE TEHIR

T
21/05/2002 40,670,000 - (6,240,000) 34,430,000 2.55 21/05/2003 -
20/05/2008
27/06/2002 3,260,000 - (1,600,000) 1,660,000 2.22 27106/2003 -
26/06/2008
06/11/2002 18,900,000 - (100,000) 18,800,000 1.60 06/11/2003 -
05/11/2008

62,830,000 - (7,940,000) 54,890,000

—EE-EER NEEF
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27. Share Options (continued)

Details of the share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company granted to the directors of
the Company under the Scheme during the year
ended 30 April 2003 included in the above table are

as follows:

Number of
underlying shares of
the Company granted

27. R #E (&)
rTERFBRARE-_TE=EmA=1
ALEFEARBZIEBETAARE
E0REARQ R 2 B RAE S
BT

during the year Exercise
and outstanding price
Date of grant as at 30 April 2003 per share Exercise period
HK$
FARHRR-ZBZE=F
MA=+HMEKRITHE
ZERETTFIE gk
BEHAH ZERATHBRGEE THEE TR
BT
21/05/2002 17,240,000 2.55 21/05/2003 - 20/05/2008
27/06/2002 1,660,000 2.22 27/06/2003 - 26/06/2008
06/11/2002 10,700,000 1.60 06/11/2003 — 05/11/2008

29,600,000

The options granted under the Scheme are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are
exercised, and no charge is recorded in the income
statement or balance sheet for their cost.

Under the Roly Executives’ Share Option Scheme
and the Roly (1999) Share Option Scheme
(collectively referred to as the “Roly’s Schemes”)
adopted by Roly International, options were granted
to employees of the Group (including directors of
the Company) for a term of 4 to 7 years to purchase
ordinary shares of Roly International at prices fixed
according to the Roly’'s Schemes. The options are
exercisable from the first or second anniversary of

the date of grant of the relevant options.

LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2003

REZERD2BRE BEHE
TERMTENMHHERAER - LK
ARTERWERLEERBBERATL
ﬁ o

REZBERRAZEZBITHRABRR
Bt g k2 (- WA NF) Bl
el (R 2/ E]) - ARBIES
(BREARAESR) ERTAHNEL
FZERE  RREBEZEGEEE
ZEBREBRBER LT AR - BRE
AREEERERL AR E B
FHEBFHRRETE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 & B A

27. Share Options (continued)
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27.

Details of the share options to subscribe for the

shares of Roly International granted to the employees

of the Group (including directors of the Company)

under the Roly’s Schemes during the years ended
30 April 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

=—FERZZEZE-FNMA
=tREFEAREZE SR TR
SEEE (BEARAES) TRESD
BB BRI ) 2 BRI T

Number of underlying shares of Roly International

RBZ2HERRAHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
as at during during during as at  Exercise price
Date of grant 1 May 2002 the year the year the year 30 April 2003 per share  Exercise period
Us$
R-BE=fF R-ZBE=%
TA-H A=+H
REAH AT EREH ERfTE EREH R ﬁﬁﬁ%@ TRER
T
26/02/1998 780,000 - - (780,000) - 0.177 26/02/1999-
25/02/2003
12/03/1999 225,000 - (150,000) - 75,000 0.100 12/03/2000-
11/03/2004
10/02/2000 2,550,000 - (419,000) (225,000 1,906,000 0.150 10/02/2001-
09/02/2005
21/08/2001 5,400,000 - (420,000) (330,000) 4,650,000 0.100 21/08/2002-
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000 0.130 07/03/2004-
06/03/2010
22/11/2002 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.138 22/11/2003-
21/11/2008
13,355,000 2,500,000 (989,000)  (1,335,0000 13,531,000
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

27. Share Options (continued) 27. B #E ()
Number of underlying shares of Roly International
HEZ2EERRGHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
as at during during during as at  Exercise price
Date of grant 1 May 2001 the year the year the year 30 April 2002 per share  Exercise period
Us$
R-B%-F R-B%=F
iRA-H AB=+H
RHAH R TR FREM ERTE EREN HATE BROTEE TRER
E3
26/02/1998 780,000 - - - 780,000 0.177 26/02/1999-
25/02/2003
12/03/1999 345,000 - (45,000) (75,000) 225,000 0.100 12/03/2000-
11/03/2004
10/02/2000 2,670,000 - - (120,000) 2,550,000 0.150 10/02/2001-
09/02/2005
21/08/2001 - 7,700,000 - (2,300,000) 5,400,000 0.100 21/08/2002-
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 - 4,400,000 - - 4,400,000 0.130  07/03/2004-
06/03/2010

3,795,000 12,100,000 (45,0000  (2,495,000) 13,355,000
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27. Share Options (continued)

Details of the share options to subscribe for the

For the year ended 30 April 2003

shares of Roly International granted to the directors

of the Company under the Roly’s Schemes during
the years ended 30 April 2003 and 2002 included

in the above tables are as follows:

27. R ¥ (&)
TR BRARE-_SE=ER -
—EMA=+BIFERBRESEE
HETAQAREEIRERERK
B2 BRREAEHEIIIMT

Number of underlying shares of Roly International

BE-—ZT=FNA=+ALEE

HEZ2EERRGEE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
as at during during during asat  Exercise price
Date of grant 1 May 2002 the year ~ the year  the year 30 April 2003 per share  Exercise period
Us$
R-Z%=% R-BE=F
ERA-H A=+H =13
RuBH WATE FRRE FRTE  FREX i K A7 6 THE TEHAR
£
26/02/1998 750,000 - - (750,000 - 0.177 26/02/1999 -
25/02/2003
10/02/2000 1,650,000 - (210,000 - 1,440,000 0.150 10/02/2001 -
09/02/2005
21/08/2001 2,900,000 - (200,000) - 2,700,000 0.100 21/08/2002 -
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000 0.130 07/03/2004 -
06/03/2010
22111/2002 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.138 22/11/2003 -
21/11/2008
9,700,000 2,500,000 (410,000) (750,000) 11,040,000

—EE-EER NEEF
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For the year ended 30 April 2003

HE_ZTT=FNA=1TRHILFE

27. Share Options (continued)

7. BRE (&)

Number of underlying shares of Roly International

HRZ2HERRGHE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
as at during during during asat  Exercise price
Date of grant 1 May 2001 the year ~ the year  the year 30 April 2002 per share  Exercise period
Us$
R-B%-% R-BE=F
ERA-H A=+H =153
RiuBH HATE FREE FROE FREAX e K AT THEE TEHAR
ET
26/02/1998 750,000 - - - 750,000 0.177 26/02/1999 -
25/02/2003
10/02/2000 1,650,000 - - - 1,650,000 0.150 10/02/2001 -
09/02/2005
21/08/2001 - 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 0.100 21/08/2002 -
20/08/2009
07/03/2002 - 4,400,000 - - 4,400,000 0.130 07/03/2004 -
06/03/2010
2,400,000 7,300,000 - - 9,700,000

The options granted under the Roly’s Schemes are

not recognised in the financial statements of the

Company.
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HE_-ZTZT-—FMNA =+ HIEFE

28. Particulars of Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s wholly owned

subsidiaries as at 30 April 2003 were as follows:

28. M2 AE R
ARTR-FE=FMA=TAZE

Name of company

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

EMEARIERMT :
Issued and
fully paid
share capital Principal activities

FEMAZ EETR
NEIEER FX 3L tth B BEREA EEK
CU Packaging & Design British Virgin Islands US$1  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited REERRHES 127t REER
CU Packaging & Design Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of merchandise
Limited and procurement agent
REMEAERAF B 2BTT HEmEBEHIREERE
IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1  Investment holding
REERRES 1€t ®BEER
IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Provision of social
compliance services
HE 2B RHEMHEEE
<P R BB RS
IGCS International Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1  Provision of social
compliance services
REERRES 121t RETESHE
e FRIEES RS
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Procurement agent
WE(HB) R QA BB 28T HREBARE
Linmark Agency (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 Investment holding
Limited and procurement agent
EEERRES 50,000%€ 7T HREEMR R RIE
Linmark Agency Hong Kong HK$10,000 Procurement agent
(Hong Kong) Limited i85 10,000/ 7t HEMNRE

CER-EFRMEEE
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For the year ended 30 April 2003

BE—ZT=FNA=+ALEE

28. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

28 B AREHR (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
Name of company establishment share capital Principal activities
HEMRL EETR
AT ER BX 3L i Bh BERE TEEK
Linmark Agency (Mauritius) Republic of Mauritius US$2  Procurement agent
Ltd FEEERHEME 2% T HEARRE
Linmark Development (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$1  Procurement agent
Limited REERRES 17T REBRE
Linmark Development Panama US$50,000 Inactive
(Far East) Limited S.A. B2 50,000% ;T  EmET
Linmark International Bangladesh Taka20,000  Procurement agent
(Bangladesh) Ltd. Fp)iEa 20,000% & HEMRE
Linmark International Hong Kong HK$200,000 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited and procurement agent
and trading of
merchandise
MEBRK (FE)BRRR  FE 200,000/ 7T HEEKRREREBRIE
rEmE S
Linmark Westman British Virgin Islands US$11  Investment holding
Investments Limited REBHBARES 11%57x ®"EER
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1  Procurement agent
EEEBRHES 17T HWERRE
Merchandise Creative Hong Kong HK$10,000 Procurement agent
Limited B 10,0007 EHEMRRE
PT Linmark Agency Indonesia US$100,000 Inactive
Indonesia ElfE 100,000% 7t HEER
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For the year ended 30 April 2003

28. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

HE_ZTT=FNA=1TRHILFE

28. B ARER (£)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
Name of company establishment share capital Principal activities
EEd L Do A BBITR
NCIEE FR 3L i B BERE FBEK
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1  Investment holding and
provision of market
trend consultancy m
services
REERRES 121 KREEBRERREHRTS
BB R AR 15
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
and provision of
market trend
consultancy services
and trading of
merchandise
B i R GG BR A A HE 2B REERKREHTIS
BB K AR 15
kEmES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Bangladesh Taka20,000  Provision of market
Ltd. trend consultancy
services
&= R 20,0008 R  RHE 5 R IE®
i A AR5
Trend Xpress (S) Pte. Singapore S$2  Provision of market
Limited trend consultancy
services
T A0 3% 2%t RETIHEIRIE®
i A AR5
Triple S Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Procurement agent
HE 100,000 7T RAEEHE

SRRSEER HELE
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_-_ZTZT-—FMA =+ HIEFE

m 28. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continuea) 28. B BEH (&)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
Name of company establishment share capital Principal activities
EE L Do A BEBITR
DNEERE X 3L tth B MERAEA FEEK
Westman Linmark Thailand Ordinary shares  Procurement agent
(Thailand) Ltd. Baht3,920,000
Preference shares
Baht4,080,000
(Note)
E= Ak REBARE
3,920,000 &k
Bk
4,080,000%% &k
(Btit)
Westman (Singapore) Singapore S$$200,000  Procurement agent
Private Limited 3N 200,000 7t FREMRE
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Procurement agent
BHPARRDA BB 100,000/ 7t EREEHE
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For the year ended 30 April 2003 HZE_—_ZTZT=_FNB =+ HILFE

28. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

The preference shares are only entitled to 3.5 per
cent. of the paid-up value of the shares, prior to
any dividend distribution to the holders of ordinary
shares. The voting rights with respect to preference
shares are every ten shares for one vote. The
preference shares are indirectly controlled by the
Group by way of entering into loan agreements with
the respective registered holders of preference
shares. According to the loan agreements, the
registered holders as borrowers agree to execute
and deliver to the Group any proxy which may be
necessary for attending and voting in every meeting
of the shareholders of Westman Linmark (Thailand)
Ltd. and grant the Group options to purchase their
shares at the price of nominal value of the
preference shares. The Group is also responsible
for managing the operations of this company. The
Group accounts for this company as a wholly-owned
subsidiary since the Group is accountable for all of
the results of the operations. As the Group has no
intention to request the borrowers to repay the
outstanding loan amounts, the Group accounts for
their amounts to borrowers as part of investment
cost.

Linmark Westman Investments Limited, Trend Xpress,

Inc.,

IGCS Group Limited and CU Packaging & Design

(BVI) Limited are directly held by the Company. All

other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

28. B RRER (&)

B &t EESEHX/\fﬁﬁxﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁéﬂ KEEBEZ
35%  WEBBRISEABEESL
ﬁ&W§°t+%ﬁ%%T$ﬁ

—EREE - FAXEEEREE
ERELBFBEANLERGZ -
MEZEEGIZEEER - RIEE
HiHE - BERELFHEANUE
EAZENRAEEZTEHALRE
Westman Linmark (Thailand)
LdBABRRERREREG LRE
ZE@?%%'EX%K%I-
BRETRER T REEEERE
EASE A RELR  HERA
BEZEBER AEBEEBEE

BRZRARZEBEE - ARARE

BERHZARZMAEXEASR -
$EIM%§W%”ﬂ%%”ﬁ

1551%& KZE ﬁ%%ﬁ Eﬂl$%
B fE TREEEAZTEINR
REKANTE -

Investments
Limited ~ Trend Xpress, Inc. > IGCS
Group Limited M CU Packaging &
Design (BVI) Limitedi 7&K X 7] H # #
B o-FBEMMBARBARAME
A -

Linmark Westman

= NN PN S e N AR R B
REETAREEZEBEERN -
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| AEMBHME
Results
L
For the year ended 30 April
BEMA=THLEE
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
—ANNGF ZTTTF ZTT—F ZTT-F “TE=F
US$°000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uus$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Turnover BER 19,576 27,192 32,491 29,648 44,294
Cost of sales 55 pA - (460) (1,352) (473) (7,104)
Gross profit EH 19,576 26,732 31,139 29,175 37,190
Other operating income Hipgga g A 560 512 1,349 1,214 1,757
Administrative expenses TBAX (16,798)  (17,740)  (20,042)  (21,821) (26,233)
Profit from operations £ & Al 3,338 9,504 12,446 8,568 12,714
Interest on obligations BMEMRE
under a finance lease EERE - - - (2) (2)
Gain on dissolution/ fRE M
disposal of a subsidiary BB A B U2k - - 911 37 -
Profit before taxation B& 5 A i A 3,338 9,504 13,357 8,603 12,712
Taxation 18 (220) (451) (490) (261) (384)
Profit for the year FEREF 3,118 9,053 12,867 8,342 12,328
Dividends il 2,700 - 8,000 13,290 4,920
Earnings per share BRAEF
(US cents) (ZE)
Basic AR 0.6 1.8 2.6 1.7 1.9
Diluted s N/A N/A N/A N/A 1.9
i A 3 A i A i A




5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBHE |
Assets and Liabilities
EERE®RE
As at 30 April
REBE=+AH
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
—WIWNE —ZTETF —TT—F “TT-F ZFTE=F
US$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$'000 us$’000
FET FET FEx FEx FET
Total assets BEE 8,422 13,158 17,574 13,558 50,470
Total liabilities waE (9,868) (5,569) (4,776) (3,572) (4,819)
Total net (liabilities) assets # (& &)
EEFE (1,446) 7,589 12,798 9,986 45,651
Notes: B &t -
(1) The results for each of the three years ended 30 April (1) BE-_ZZ—FNA=1tHI=HAFES

2001 which were extracted from the Prospectus have been
prepared as if the Company had always been the holding
company of the Group from the beginning of the earliest
period presented, using the pooling of interests method.

The results for the two years ended 30 April 2003 and 30
April 2002 have been extracted from the audited
consolidated income statements as set out on page 58 of
this annual report.

Earnings per share for the four years ended from 30 April
1999 to 30 April 2002 have been calculated based on the
profit for the year and the 499,200,000 shares in issue
and issuable comprising 2,000,000 shares in issue as at
30 April 2002 and 497,200,000 shares issued pursuant
to the capitalisation issue as more fully disclosed in Note
19 to the financial statements.

(2)

FEEA(REEBARER) DRAAHESE
EZTRRE O BMARTE -RHBEER
REBEZERAT

HE - ZTT=_FNA=Zt+tHE _ZTT_F
MA=Z+THIEMEFEEE WA AT
MEOSE B 2 K BIZE AN K »

H— AN FENA=+tAREE-_TT =
FOA=+TRHIENFZERABF HRIEF
A R% 3R JE 4 5 1 £2499,200,0000% B % 17
E#EFEIRG (RER-ZZZFHNA=
+ B 2 %17 2 2,000,0000% i 15 & 1R 1% BF %
MEMFIOGFA 2 EARLEITMEITZ
497,200,0008% & 1) 5t & -

SRRSEER HELE



Corporate Information
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Executive Directors

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman)

Steven Julien FENIGER (Chief Executive Officer)
FU Jin Ming, Patrick

KHOO Kim Cheng

KWOK Chi Kueng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

WONG Wai Ming

Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden

Audit Committee

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Wai Ming

Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden

Company Secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
10th Floor, South Seas Centre, Tower I,
75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
The Bank of Bermuda Limited

6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars and
Transfer Office

Standard Registrars Limited

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

26th Floor, Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

10th Floor, HSBC Building Tsim Sha Tsui,
82-84 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank
10th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
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3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2003

HITES

TR (/%)
SEER (TR AER)
1 12 95

B 88 5

538

BUFHUTES
T G

{2
BUBEE

BERZER
IR (ZARER)
=EH

BB

ARAME
3RIG

AfMERE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

BPMEERIEEXRMA
BB LEER Y 18 i B 755
FI AR L T 1012

FERVBFEZE
The Bank of Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

ROBFELTEERDTE

EEFSELARDA
ER B ELITB565%
RERITBER LT

3 4]

=) o MEM ST & M0(T
WEG D

BB FHER IR
K% b 2618

FEARRT
EELGELRITERDA
BB N BR AR 1 8 HE 82 — 8457
R IEE R A 10/

B IRTT
BAREMET 4 4A%
BITIRIT KE 1082

TEPRERTT
&8 R IRICE B3R
EEERESERERAEASE



Shareholder Information

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 10 May 2002

Stock Code 915

Board Lot 2,000

Par Value US$0.02

Trading Currency HK$

Financial Calendar 2003
Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Register of members closed

30 April 2003

23 July 2003

2 September 2003
4-8 September 2003

Annual general meeting
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants

8 September 2003
8 September 2003
on or about

18 September 2003
In the 4th week of
September 2003*
In the 3rd week of
December 2003*

1st quarter results to be announced

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

Final Dividend

The board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 3.5
HK cents per share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2003.
Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be paid
in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 8 September 2003.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or
about Thursday, 18 September 2003.

The register of members will be closed from Thursday,
4 September 2003 to Monday, 8 September 2003, both
dates inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars not later than
4.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 3 September 2003.

Shareholder Services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars:

Standard Registrars Limited

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2980 1768

Facsimile (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong
Kong branch share registrars promptly of any change of
addresses.

Investor Relations
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Unit A, 29th Floor, Admiralty Centre I,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2527 0490
Facsimile (852) 2804 2789
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